
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, Amgylchedd a 

Materion Gwledig 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 5 Mawrth 2020 

Amser: 09.20

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6363  

SeneddNHAMG@cynulliad.cymru
------ 

 

Rhag-gyfarfod (9.20-9.30) PREIFAT  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09:30)   

 

2 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol mewn perthynas â Bil 

Amaethyddiaeth y DU - sesiwn dystiolaeth 2 

(9.30-11.00) (Tudalennau 1 - 62)  

Dr Nick Fenwick, Pennaeth Polisi – Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru  

Nigel Hollett, Cyfarwyddwr CLA Cymru – Cymdeithas Tir a Busnes Cefn Gwlad  

Huw Thomas, Ymgynghorydd Gwleidyddol – Undeb Cenedlaethol Amaethwyr 

Cymru  

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

Papur - Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Cymdeithas Tir a Busnesau Cefn Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Undeb Cenedlaethol Amaethwyr Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



EGWYL (11.00-11.15)  

 

3 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol mewn perthynas â Bil 

Amaethyddiaeth y DU - sesiwn dystiolaeth 3 

(11.15-12.00) (Tudalennau 63 - 73)  

George Dunn, Prif Weithredwr – Cymdeithas y Ffermwyr Tenant 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur - Cymdeithas y Ffermwyr Tenant (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

4 Papurau i'w nodi 

4.1 Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan Hybu Cig Cymru ar y MCD mewn perthyna â Bil 

Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

 (Tudalennau 74 - 75)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur - Hybu Cig Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

4.2 Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan RSPB Cymru ar y MCD mewn perthyna â Bil 

Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

 (Tudalennau 76 - 79)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur - RSPB Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

4.3 Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan yr Ymddiriedolaeth Cenedlaethol ar y MCD 

mewn perthynas â Bil Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

 (Tudalennau 80 - 85)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur - Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol (Saesneg yn unig) 

4.4 Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adrodiad y Pwyllgor ar Gyllideb ddrafft 

Llywodraeth Cymru 2020-2021 

 (Tudalennau 86 - 96)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru 



4.5 Tlodi Tanwydd - Gwybodaeth am berthnasoedd a phartneriaethau gan 

Energy UK 

 (Tudalennau 97 - 99)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythr (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod heddiw 

   

PREIFAT 12.00-12.30  

 

6 Trafod y dystiolaeth a gafwyd o dan eitemau 2 a 3 

   

 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

 

 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 

Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee  

MCD mewn perthynas â Bil 
Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

LCM in relation to UK Agriculture Bill 

NHAMG (5) AB03 CCERA(5) AB03 

Ymateb gan Undeb Amaethwyr 
Cymru 

Evidence from Farmers’ Union Wales 
 

 

 

About the Farmers’ Union of Wales 
1. The Farmers’ Union of Wales (FUW) was established in 1955 to exclusively represent the 

interests of farmers in Wales, and since 1978 has been formally recognised by the UK 
Government, and subsequently by the Welsh Government, as independently 
representing those interests. 

2. The FUW’s Vision is thriving, sustainable, family farms in Wales, while the Mission of 
the Union is To advance and protect Wales’ family farms, both nationally and 
individually, in order to fulfil the Union’s vision. 

3. In addition to its Head Office, which has thirty full-time members of staff, the FUW 
Group has around 80 members of staff based in twelve regional offices around Wales 
providing a broad range of services for members. 

4. The FUW is a democratic organisation, with policies being formulated following 
consultation with its twelve County Executive Committees and eleven Standing 
Committees. 

Summary of key concerns 

Supply chains and production 

 

5. The FUW supports many of the principles which underpin what the Bill 
aims to achieve in terms of improving transparency and redressing 
imbalances of power along supply chains, maintaining standards, 
monitoring food security, encouraging production and simplifying 
legislation. 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



Divergence 

6. The FUW has major concerns regarding the degree to which the Bill 
would in future allow far greater divergence between regulations, 
budgets, minimum and maximum spending thresholds and other 
policies and approaches implemented in the four UK nations than 
would have been allowed under EU regulatory frameworks. 

7. The scale of such divergence could potentially be unprecedented in 
recent history and have the effect of distorting markets and effecting 
unfair competition between businesses in different parts of the UK. 

8. As an organisation which fully supports Welsh devolution, the FUW 
recognises that divergence is an inherent part of devolution. However, 
this has previously happened within the boundaries set by EU 
frameworks, and the Bill and related legislation effectively removes or 
fails to replace the vast majority of such boundaries, either immediately 
or over time. 

  

9. As such, the FUW has argued for the UK administrations to agree on a 
number of frameworks which ensure proportionate rules and spending 
limits are in place to protect businesses from market distortion and 
unfair competition, ensure the UK’s internal markets and supply chains 
continue to function properly and meet agreed common objectives 
which are in all our interests1. 

 

Protecting UK markets, consumers and farmers 

  

10. The FUW is extremely concerned that the Bill does not introduce means 
by which to prevent the importation of food produced to 
environmental, animal welfare and other production standards which 
fall short of those legally required of UK farmers, notwithstanding the 
provisions in relation to organic standards in Section 36(5). 

  

                                                

1 Filling the Void - Steps towards a post-Brexit UK policy framework. FUW Discussion Paper, 
July 2018 

Tudalen y pecyn 35

https://www.fuw.org.uk/images/pdf/Filling_the_void-English.pdf
https://www.fuw.org.uk/images/pdf/Filling_the_void-English.pdf


11. Failure to prevent the importation of food produced to lower standards 
would not only compromise UK businesses required to operate under 
more costly regimes, but also result in a net fall in environmental and 
animal welfare standards, as production countries with lower standards 
would be favoured. Such adverse environmental impacts would include 
those relating to greenhouse gas emissions. 

  

12. It must also be noted that if products which do not meet standards 
which are at least equivalent to EU standards are allowed to enter the 
UK, this will increase friction at UK-EU borders while undermining the 
UK’s ability to reach an acceptable trade deal with the the prosperous 
EU market which is on our doorstep. 

 

Comments regarding specific parts of the Bill 

 

13. Given that the FUW has many members who farm land in England, the 
following comments are not restricted to those Sections which relate 
only directly or indirectly to Wales.  

  

14. Moreover, many of the comments relating to provisions in relation to 
England are also relevant to the equivalent Sections in Schedule 5 
(Provision relating to Wales). 

 

Part 1: Financial assistance 

Part 1, Chapter 1: New financial assistance powers 

  

15. The FUW welcomes the requirement for the Secretary of State to have 
regard to the need to encourage the production of food by producers in 
England and its production by them in an environmentally sustainable 
way. 

  

16. Notwithstanding this, the fact that such a requirement relates only to 
England highlights the potential for divergence between overarching 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



policies implemented by the UK nations, as referred to above, since a 
Bill introduced by Wales or Scotland may have an overarching objective 
which has no regard for or serves to disadvantage food production. 

  

17. We would also emphasise our view that this section of the Bill should 
recognise the intrinsic value of supporting family farms and the rural 
communities of which they are an inherent social and economic part. 

 

 Part 1, Chapter 2: Direct Payments after EU exit 

  

18. The FUW welcomes the provisions allowing the Basic Payment Scheme 
to be simplified and made less burdensome for both farmers and 
government bodies. 

  

19. Whilst the FUW fully supports the introduction of a successor scheme 
over a lengthy transition period, we would highlight the need for such a 
scheme to be designed in light of future trading arrangements, national 
priorities and the need to ensure family farms and rural communities 
remain economically viable. 

  

20. In this context, we would highlight the fact that the concept of a ‘public 
goods’ scheme, as proposed in the previous UK Government’s Health 
and Harmony consultation, was conceived some two decades ago and 
therefore cannot reflect modern needs and priorities nor trading 
arrangements which have yet to be agreed. 

  

21. As such, the FUW has urged the Welsh and UK Governments to use the 
UK’s exit from the EU as an opportunity to be truly innovative as regards 
designing future schemes that meet food production, environmental 
and social needs without placing farming families at a disadvantage 
compared with the farmers on the continent and in the Republic of 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



Ireland against whom they will inevitably compete2. The impacts of any 
proposals should be thoroughly modelled before implementation to 
avoid adverse impacts. 

 

Part 1, Chapter 3: Other financial support after Brexit 

  

22. The FUW generally welcomes the provision of powers relating to other 
financial support after Brexit, but would reiterate the view that such 
support should fall within a defined framework. 

 

Part 2: Food and agricultural markets 

Part 2, Chapter 1: Food security 

  

23. The FUW supports the requirement to prepare and lay before 
Parliament a report containing an analysis of statistical data relating to 
food security in the UK. 

  

24. However, it must be noted that the fall in global food supplies from 
2007 onwards which led to rationing and extreme civil unrest in many 
countries occurred rapidly, and it is therefore believed that such a report 
should be prepared annually, and that a maximum frequency of five 
years does not sufficiently reflect the food security risk to the UK. 

 

                                                

2 FUW response to the Welsh Government’s Sustainable Farming and our Land consultation, 
Oct 2019 (see section 5.74 - Alternative proposal for supporting farmers in a manner consistent 
with Sustainable Land Management) 

Tudalen y pecyn 38

https://fuw.org.uk/images/pdf_header_images/policy_pdfs/SFOL_Consultation_Response_FINAL_301019.pdf
https://fuw.org.uk/images/pdf_header_images/policy_pdfs/SFOL_Consultation_Response_FINAL_301019.pdf
https://fuw.org.uk/images/pdf_header_images/policy_pdfs/SFOL_Consultation_Response_FINAL_301019.pdf


 

Part 2, Chapter 2: Intervention on agriculture markets 

  

25. The FUW welcomes the measures in relation to exceptional market 
conditions in England, but once again notes the dangers that such a 
declaration and subsequent interventions in England, without 
equivalent moves in Wales, would introduce market distortions given 
the close relationship between English and Welsh producers and 
processors. 

  

26. As such, it is believed the Bill should ensure that the Secretary of State 
(or the Welsh Ministers or DAERA, in terms of Schedules 5 and 6) have 
regard for the need to work with other administrations in order to 
minimise such adverse impacts. 

 

Part 3: Transparency and fairness in the agri-food supply 
chain 

Part 3, Chapter 1: Collection and sharing of data 

  

27. The FUW generally welcomes the provisions in relation to the collection 
and sharing of data, but would emphasise the need to ensure that such 
data is not of a nature which disadvantages farmers either collectively or 
individually. As such, the FUW supports those objectives referred to in 
Section 23. 

  

28. However, given that supply chains extend across the UK, we would once 
again raise the issue of possible divergence between data collection and 
sharing requirements in different parts of the UK, and the need 
therefore for the UK Government to work closely with devolved 
administrations to ensure relative uniformity. 

 

29. Moreover, supply chains will also extend to countries outside the EU, 
and there is therefore a danger that limiting data collection 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



requirements to activities in England or the UK will disadvantage UK 
producers and processors or even encourage them to source food from 
outside the UK. 

  

30. In this context, it is notable that price and market transparency 
measures currently being considered by the EU would extend, where 
relevant, to Third Countries, and it is believed that the Bill should take 
account of how transparency may be extended to include imported 
produce. 

 

Part 3, Chapter 2: Fair dealing with agricultural producers and others in the 
supply chain 

  

31. While Section 27 gives the Secretary of State welcome powers to 
impose written contracts or specific contract terms, the Bill might also 
be amended to extend the powers of the Groceries Adjudicator to cover 
all major operators along the whole supply chain. 

 

Part 3, Chapter 3: Producer organisations 

 

32. Whilst the provisions in relation to producer organisations are welcome, 
Chapter 3 raises questions in terms of how devolved administrations 
with powers in relation to agriculture should be properly involved in the 
process of approving an application to become a producer organisation.  

  

33. As such, where an application by farmers in a devolved nation is 
supported by that nation’s devolved Government but objected to by the 
Secretary of State, the Bill in its current form would fail to place any 
weight on the view of the devolved administration, despite that 
administration having a range of other powers over agriculture 
(including many granted through the Bill). 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



Part 4: Matters relating to farming and the countryside 

Part 4, Section 32: Identification and traceability of   animals 

 

34. Ths FUW has significant concerns that Section 32 allows the Secretary of 
State to assign functions to a body established under Section 87(1)(a) of 
the Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 
relating to the identification of animals, and collecting, managing and 
making available information on animal identification, movement and 
health in all parts of the UK. 

  

35. Under Sections 87(2) and (3) of the NERC Act, an order may specify only 
one geographic area in relation to which assigned functions are 
exercisable, but Section 32(1) of the Agriculture Bill may grant powers to 
that body relating to other geographic areas. 

  

36. As such, a body governed by a board comprising members from, or 
representing only one geographic area, with current powers to act in 
only that area, may, under Section 32, be granted powers relating to the 
identification of animals, and collecting, managing and making 
available information on animal identification, movement and health in 
other geographic areas of the UK. 

 

37. Such an outcome would significantly undermine devolved 
administrations and democratic answerability in an unacceptable way, 
and the FUW therefore believes that significant changes should be 
made to Section 32 to negate these concerns. 

  

38. Notwithstanding this, the FUW fully supports the maintenance of single 
UK databases which collate information relating to animal traceability 
and identification from national databases in order to rapidly respond 
to, for example, disease outbreaks. However, the FUW believes that the 
responsibility for such data should sit with a UK Government body. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



Part 4, Section 33: Red meat levy: payments between levy bodies in Great 
Britain 

  
39. The FUW fully supports the provisions under Section 33 given that many 

millions have been paid by Welsh farmers to levy bodies outside Wales, 
effectively making such funds unavailable for promotion, research and 
other activities under the direction of the Welsh levy board Hybu Cig 
Cymru. 

 

Part 5: Marketing standards, organic products and 
carcass classification 

Part 5, Section 35: Marketing standards and Section 38: Carcass classification  

 

40. Given that Section 35 relates to marketing standards for agricultural 
products marketed in England; that Part 4 of Schedule 5 of the Bill 
relates to marketing standards for products marketed in Wales; and the 
degree of trade between England and Wales, we would suggest that 
the Bill should include an obligation for the Secretary of State and 
Welsh Ministers to avoid any adverse impacts caused by divergence 
while respecting devolved powers and needs.  

 

41. Similar concerns exist in relation to Section 38 and the equivalent part 
of Schedule 5 in terms of differences between carcass classifications 
introduced in England and Wales. 

 

 

 Part 5, Sections 36 and 37: Organic products 

  

42. Whilst Section 36 relates to organic standards and related matters 
across the UK, Section 37 provides powers relating to Section 36 to the 
Secretary of State in any case, and to each of the devolved 
administrations where the regulations would be within the legislative 
competence of that administration. 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



  

43. On the one hand, this raises concerns about divergence between 
standards required of organic producers in different parts of the UK 
despite major supply chains extending across all four nations, while on 
the other, Section 37(1)(a) implies that the Secretary of State might be 
able to override decisions made by devolved administrations. 

  

44. This gives rise to significant concerns and confusion, and once again we 
would emphasise the need for the Bill to ensure divergence can take 
place only within thresholds agreed by all UK administrations, such that 
devolution is respected but unfair competition and market distortion 
minimised. 

 

45. Section 36(5) allows regulations to be made in relation to the import of 
organic products into the UK.  

  

46. The FUW welcomes this provision, but believes that, where possible in 
terms of World Trade Organisation rules, the Bill should be amended to 
include equivalent Sections which prevent the import of products 
which do not comply with those standards, including environmental 
and animal health and welfare standards, required of UK farmers either 
by law or under certification schemes other than those related to 
organic products. 

 

Part 6: WTO agreement on agriculture 

Part 6, Section 41: Regulations under section 40: limits on provision of 
domestic support in the United Kingdom 

 

47. It is notable that Section 41 stands in stark contrast to the regimes 
currently and previously in place under the Common Agricultural Policy, 
in that regulations relating to the latter set a multitude of thresholds 
which include both minimum and maximum percentages for different 
types of support and intervention. 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 43



48. By contrast, Section 41 appears to refer only to maximum limits, 
potentially allowing major divergence between overall and targeted 
spending in each of the UK nations. 

  

49. As such, the FUW believes that Section 41 should be amended to allow 
regulations to be introduced, following consultation and agreement 
between the four UK nations, which specify both minimum and 
maximum spending thresholds in relation to specific policy areas3. 

 

Part 6, Section 42: Regulations under section 40: classification of domestic 
support and provision of information 

  

50. The FUW welcomes the provisions under Section 42 in terms of 
categorising different types of support and dispute resolution. However, 
as indicated at 49., it is believed that multiple categories of support 
should be defined and considered. 

 

Schedule 3: Agricultural tenancies 

  

51. The FUW generally welcomes the proposed amendments to the 
Agricultural Holdings Act 1986 and the Agricultural Tenancies Act 1995. 

 

52. However, the FUW would support further amendments to those Acts in 
line with its response to the 2019 Agricultural Tenancy Reform 
Consultation, either through the Bill or under separate legislation. 

 

                                                

3 Please see page 15 (Financial Frameworks) of Filling the Void - Steps towards a post-Brexit 
UK policy framework. FUW Discussion Paper, July 2018 

Tudalen y pecyn 44

https://www.fuw.org.uk/images/pdf/Filling_the_void-English.pdf
https://www.fuw.org.uk/images/pdf/Filling_the_void-English.pdf


 

Schedule 5: Provision relating to Wales 

  

53. Notwithstanding the concerns expressed in relation to the need for 
frameworks which reduce the scope for divergence between the UK 
nations, the FUW generally supports the provision relating to Wales. 

  

54. Schedule 3 of the previous (2017-2019) Agriculture Bill provided the 
Welsh Ministers with significantly less flexibility than is currently the 
case under the (now transposed) EU Regulations, as it merely replicated 
the equivalent English section of the Bill, focussing on mechanisms by 
which to replace the Basic Payment Scheme with a public goods 
scheme. Moreover, the similarities were such that even the agricultural 
transition period for both the English and Welsh sections were identical, 
despite the two administrations having consulted on different transition 
periods. 

  

55. As such, the FUW welcomes the fact that the new Agriculture Bill makes 
no such prescriptive proposals, either for Wales or England, thereby 
allowing both administrations to design genuinely innovative schemes 
in light of post-transition period trading arrangements and modern 
needs and priorities. 

  

Schedule 5, Part 1: Financial support after EU exit 

  

56. The FUW welcomes those provisions allowing the Welsh Ministers to 
extend, modify, simplify or improve the Basic Payment Scheme and 
make penalties more proportionate. 
 

Schedule 5, Part 2: Interventions in agricultural markets 

 

57. The FUW would reiterate the comments made at 25. and 26. in relation 
to Chapter 2 of the Bill, particularly in relation to the need to ensure that 
the the Welsh Ministers have regard for the need to work with other 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



administrations in order to minimise market distortion and unfair 
competition. 

 

 

Schedule 5, Part 3: Collection and sharing of data 

  

58. The FUW would reiterate the comments made at 27. to 30. in relation to 
Part 3 Chapter 1, particularly in relation to possible divergence between 
data collection and sharing requirements in different parts of the UK, 
and the need therefore for the Welsh Ministers to work closely with 
other administrations to ensure relative uniformity. 

 

Schedule 5, Part 4: Marketing standards and carcass classification  

 

59. The FUW would reiterate the comments made at 40. and 41. In relation 
to Chapter3, Part 5, Sections 35 and 38, particularly in relation to the 
need for the Bill to include an obligation that administrations avoid any 
adverse impacts caused by divergence while respecting devolved 
powers and needs. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

 

 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 

Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee  

MCD mewn perthynas â Bil 
Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

LCM in relation to UK Agriculture Bill 

NHAMG (5) AB05 CCERA(5) AB05 
Ymateb gan Cymdeithas Tir a 
Busnesau Cefn Gwlad 

Evidence from Country, Land and 
Business Association 

 

CLA Background 

CLA Cymru’s membership reaches nearly 3,000 rural businesses. In Wales we 
play a full and dynamic part in Government and stakeholder engagement. Part of 
a well-established UK-wide organisation, the CLA represents some 30,000 
members – some 80% of land in England and Wales.  

In Wales the CLA represents many farms, but significantly many farm businesses 
which have developed additional business activities. Such activities may be 
referred to as diversifications, but their association with a foundation farm 
business defines them as mutually-dependent. It means that we represent the 
broadest possible range of economic players in the rural economy.   

Whilst we are perceived and engage as experts in agricultural issues, we also 
have knowledge and experience relating to the breadth of issues affecting rural 
businesses, including concerns with planning, investment and economic 
development, skills provision, connectivity and physical infrastructure and 
housing.  

We have maintained that a strong case for change exists in Welsh agriculture. 
Farms reliant on CAP are barely breaking-even, soil and water-quality are 
deteriorating and the existing system does not take sufficient account of today’s 
and future generations’ priorities: tackling climate change, improving responsible 
access to the countryside and changing diet. Brexit – and its related process – 
offers an opportunity to change.  

CLA Cymru welcomes the opportunity to contribute evidence to inform the 
Committee’s consideration of the Legislative Consent Memorandum on the 
Agriculture Bill and to present this on the 5th March and take questions.  

Tudalen y pecyn 47



In Wales we work closely with the Welsh Government and the National Assembly 
for Wales including with individual Assembly Members and MPs. As an England-
Wales organisation we ensure that all our policies reflect the devolution agenda in 
Wales and to reflect this our submission is being led by CLA Cymru (hereafter 
referred to as CLA). We have a dedicated team in Wales and the Director Wales will 
attend the Committee on the 5th March. 

Key points 

CLA supports the UK Agriculture Bill to enable the provision of financial support to 
farmers in Wales from the end of 2020, and to ensure the effective operation of 
agricultural markets in Wales and across the UK. We would not wish to see an 
“internal market” effectively being created in the UK due to significant disparities 
between the devolved nations and England, and urge Welsh Government to work 
with their counterparts to ensure this does not become a reality. Certain time-
limited powers provided for by this UK Government Bill will be used until an 
Agriculture (Wales) Bill is introduced to the Assembly. CLA looks forward to 
continuing to work with the CCERA committee and Assembly members, to ensure 
a future Bill works for Welsh farmers, land managers and other rural businesses.  

CLA welcomes the reintroduction of the UK Agriculture Bill as a crucial part of the 
UK’s future farming and land management policy. There are welcome additions 
that apply to Wales in addition to some omissions that we envisage will negatively 
affect Welsh farmers and land managers. The CLA welcomes the inclusion of: 

 A requirement to report on UK food security; 
 The range of powers to ensure an intra-UK level playing field covering 

fertilisers; traceability of animals and organic marketing standards; 
 Powers in schedule 5 to continue payments after EU exit, collection and 

sharing of data, marketing standards/carcass classification and data 
protection. 

The majority of current proposals relating to agricultural tenancies are not a major 
concern, and CLA welcomes: 

 Provisions relating to landlord investments, which will provide protection for 
both landlords and tenants; 

 Removal of the minimum retirement age of 65 for AHA tenants; 
 The widening of the pool of potential arbitrators. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



However, the CLA has significant concerns about: 

 The proposal on landlord’s consent or variations in terms under 1986 Act, 
which could lead to irreversible land use changes being imposed by a third 
party; 

 The removal of the Commercial Unit Test. 
 

Trade 

CLA wishes to see an inclusion in the Bill that ensures that Welsh and other UK 
producers are not undercut by imports produced to lower environmental and 
animal welfare standards. We have a strong, historic record in the UK of ensuring 
this is not the case and our global, trade negotiations need to take this on board as 
part of the Brexit and trade negotiations. As we also indicate above, we would not 
wish to see an internal UK market arising which would have no benefit for either 
producers or consumers. 

Rural Development 

The Rural Development programmes in the UK will finish at the end of 2020. 
Although it is expected that the multiannual commitments under the agri-
environment schemes will continue, consideration has to be given to providing 
much needed support to other aspects of the rural economy which include 
broader socio-economic schemes 

Part 2 Clause 17, Food Security 

We support the inclusion of a clause to ensure the Defra Secretary of State publishes 
a report on Food Security. It is vital that Welsh Government is included in the 
methodology planning for the report so that Welsh (and other Devolved 
Administrations) are able to extrapolate their own data to inform future policy 
making in the individual jurisdictions that constitute the UK. 

 

Part 4 (Clauses 31-32) (Fertilisers and Traceability of 
Animals) Part 5 (Clauses 36-37) (Organic products) Part 7 
(Clauses 43-44) and Schedule 5 (Wales).  

CLA Cymru does not have any issues with the above clauses and supports the 
development of an Agriculture (Wales) Bill in addition to the next stage of the 
Sustainable Farming and Our Land consultation. These will be central to develop 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



a land use policy that works for Wales while also contributing to wider UK matters 
that are not devolved. 

Ensuring a common framework between all nations of the UK will be important to 
prevent distortion between farmers and land managers operating under different 
jurisdictions. Updating fertiliser regulations to reflect changes in technology and 
production is also supported as is ensuring the legislation for livestock identification 
is up to date to support the introduction of new electronic identification. 

Part 4 (Clause 34) and Schedule 3 (Agricultural tenancies) 

Schedule 3 of the Agriculture Bill sets out seven proposals of legislative reform for 
agricultural tenancies. We understand that the intention is that these changes will 
support productivity growth in the agriculture sector. All except one relate to 
tenancies under the 1986 Agricultural Holdings Act (AHA - secure tenancies for up 
to 3 generations) and the other applies to both AHA and Agriculture Tenancy Act 
1995 (ATA, with agreements often referred to as Farm Business Tenancies (FBT) 
which are more flexible. Some of the proposed changes are considered non-
contentious, and indeed offer some benefits to landowners, but others are a cause 
for concern. 

 

CLA position  

 The Tenancy Reform Industry Group (TRIG) has been reviewing tenancy 
issues. The key to effective reform is to ensure that there is a partnership 
approach and a system that is flexible and works with the rights of both 
landowner and tenant. This is particularly important in a context of 
considerable uncertainty in terms of what transition away from direct 
payments will look like in practice, and in terms of future trading 
relationships. 

 The CLA is sympathetic to those changes that could support environmental 
delivery and sustainable productivity growth, including investment, 
modernization and greater professionalism in land management.  

 We want a buoyant tenancy sector: in-hand farming does not suit everyone’s 
business model and it provides opportunities for new entrants and for 
innovative farming models. But in times of uncertainty, it’s important to avoid 
changes that might make landlords more risk-averse and lead to a reduction 
in land being let out. Reforms in Scotland have significantly affected the 
rented sector and we need to be careful not to do the same in England and 
Wales by tacking rushed amendments, which could lead to major 
infringement of property rights, onto this Bill. 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



 

The majority of current proposals are not a major concern, and the CLA welcomes: 

 Provisions relating to landlord investments, which will provide 
protection for both landlords and tenants. 

 Removal of the minimum retirement age of 65 for AHA tenants. 
 The widening of the pool of potential arbitrators. 

The CLA has significant concerns about: 

1. Request for landlord’s consent or variations in terms under 1986 Act: dispute 
resolution 

 This amendment allows for regulations to be made that would enable 
a tenant to access dispute resolution where a landlord either withholds 
consent to activities that are restricted under the terms of the tenancy 
agreement or does not agree to requests for a variations of terms, where 
that tenant is seeking to meet a statutory obligation or access financial 
assistance schemes. The arbitrator’s deliberation would be binding on 
the landlord. 

 The CLA’s view is that this provision should not be included in the Bill. 
We expect that in the overwhelming majority of cases, an agreement 
will be found. However, a landlord may be justified in maintaining 
restrictions in tenancy agreements (e.g. for landscape protection, 
prevention of environmental impacts, fit with management plans for 
the wider holding or tax consequences). As drafted, the provision 
presents a fundamental risk of infringement of landlords’ property 
rights, as irreversible long-term decisions on how their land is used 
could be imposed on them.  

 If it is to remain in the Bill, there must be supplementary clauses to 
ensure that landlord interests are taken into consideration, particularly 
around the issues listed under the previous point.  

 In addition, it would be appropriate that if a decision to vary terms is 
taken against the wishes of the landlord for the financial gain of the 
tenant, then there should be provision to switch the rent review 
formula to that in the 1995 Act. 

2. Succession on death or retirement – conditions relating to the Commercial 
Unit Test and the Suitability Test. 

i. While an enhanced Suitability Test might succeed in raising standards 
(which the CLA would welcome), the abolition of the Commercial Unit 
Test is not appropriate.  

Tudalen y pecyn 51



ii. The Commercial Unit Test means that a potential successor cannot take 
on the tenancy if they are farming another holding that can sustain the 
employment of 2 full time employees. This is an important test that 
should be maintained.  It is not appropriate that a tenant’s close relative 
already successful elsewhere should be entitled to take on a 1986 Act 
tenancy with reduced rent. It does not meet the stated goals of opening 
up the market to new entrants. 

In line with TRIG recommendations, the CLA would support the introduction of an 
amendment of the 1995 Agricultural Tenancies Act to establish notice procedures 
applicable to all FBTs of more than 2 years, to allow recovery of land under certain 
events such as non-payment of rent, death of the tenant, breach of covenant or 
conditions, and, short notice in the event of planning consent for change of use to 
be obtained. 

Future trade agreements 

CLA want to see an inclusion in the Bill that ensures Welsh and other UK producers 
are not undercut by imports produced to lower environmental and animal welfare 
standards. The UK is about to enter into a period of negotiations with the EU and 
the rest of the world regarding its future trading relationship. The negotiations with 
the EU are to end on 31 December 2020 with the end of the transition period. The 
Prime Minister has set out a series of principles that will underpin future UK trade 
policy including non-alignment with EU regulations. In addition, there have been 
assurances that the UK Government will ‘maintain high standard for the 
environment and animal health and welfare’, but these have not been committed 
to legislation. If the UK Government pursues a trade policy based on regulatory 
autonomy it could cause significant friction within the agri-food supply chain with 
the real potential of putting pressure on producer returns in Wales.  

Given the geographic proximity of the UK to the EU, UK agri-food trade is closely 
integrated with that in the EU and any restrictions to that trade, whether it be 
regulatory or through more complex customs arrangements, will have a negative 
effect on the profitability and productivity of producers. 

A significant divergence in approach to regulation and standards by the UK 
government could lead to the UK agri-food sector having to put in place two 
different production processes, one for the UK and one for the EU market. This 
could lead to higher costs in the agri-food supply chain and potentially restrict 
access to the EU market.  

If the UK government decides a policy of significant regulatory autonomy and 
moves away from EU regulations, it is possible that food and welfare standards will 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



be lowered. This could lead to a flood of cheaper imports and undercut domestic 
producers. It is well evidenced that UK consumers buy on price, not necessarily 
quality or welfare. The sow stall ban in 2006 graphically illustrates what can happen 
to an agricultural sector if divergent regulatory approaches are taken. In this 
instance, the UK pig sector suffered greatly as a result of having to meet welfare 
standards which were not applied in the EU until 10 years later. The result was the 
halving of producer numbers in the UK due to the effects of unfair competition and 
cheaper imports.  

UK producers could find themselves in the same situation if the UK government 
was to unilaterally apply higher standards to domestic producers whilst failing to 
protect the UK market from cheaper imports from EU and non-EU countries. Any 
future approach has to carefully consider the costs and benefits from moving away 
from existing technical, welfare and safety standards. If these standards are eroded, 
they risk damaging the UK’s own ability to develop and compete in other markets 
in the future, leading to a failure to deliver the choice and quality UK consumers 
demand. 

Rural Development 

The Rural Development programmes in the UK will finish at the end of 2020. 
Although it is expected that the multiannual commitments under the agri-
environment schemes will continue, consideration has to be given to providing 
much needed support to other aspects of the rural economy which include broader 
socio-economic schemes. It is clear that there have been significant benefits in 
supporting new businesses through diversification and this will become ever more 
important in the post Brexit era. 

Any delay in putting in place the proposed UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
could have a number of negative consequences for the rural economy to 
remain productive. What is required is a commitment from UK Government that 
there will not be a funding gap between the end of the Rural Development 
Programmes and the birth of the UKSPF. We know that the rural economy is 
dynamic but this can only be exploited if rural businesses continue to be supported 
through devolved government intervention with funding from Westminster. It has 
to be recognised that diversification, if used effectively, can be a transformative 
policy instrument. But this will only be possible if UK Government extends the 
existing rural development socio-economic scheme funding to fill any void in 
public-private rural investment. 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



 

 

 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 

Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee  

MCD mewn perthynas â Bil 
Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

LCM in relation to UK Agriculture Bill 

NHAMG (5) AB06 CCERA(5) AB06 
Ymateb gan Undeb Cenedlaethol yr 
Amaethwyr 

Evidence from National Farmers Union 
 

 

General remarks 

 

1. NFU Cymru welcomed the reintroduction of the UK Government’s Agriculture 
Bill to Parliament earlier this year, after the previous version was lost because of 
the December’s early general election. NFU Cymru is pleased that 2020 version of 
the Bill has addressed some of the concerns held by NFU Cymru with regard to 
the version of the Bill published in 2018. 

 

2. The Bill is by and large enabling legislation, providing fairly broad powers to 
current and future UK and Welsh Ministers to undertake various actions. Although 
this second iteration of the Bill is far more modest in its scope in relation to the 
powers which it confers on Welsh Ministers, there remain a number of provisions 
within the Bill which will apply in Wales, and which will impact on Welsh 
agriculture.     

 

Clause 17 – Food Security   

 

3. NFU Cymru has consistently sought to bring to successive governments’ 
attention the decline in food security and domestic self-sufficiency since the 
1980s.   Our domestic supply base has declined over the course of the last three 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



decades to the point that we are now only 61% self-sufficient in temperate 
foodstuffs1.   

 

4.The Agriculture Bill will impose a duty on the Westminster Government to report 
on UK food security every five years.   NFU Cymru welcomes this provision, which 
represents a change on the previous version of the Agriculture Bill which imposed 
no such duty on Defra Ministers.   

 

5. It is NFU Cymru’s view that a duty arising at least once every five years is not 
sufficiently ambitious, and we would suggest instead that Defra Ministers should 
be obliged to report to Parliament on food security, at least once a year.  We 
believe that an obligation to report yearly is particularly important as the UK goes 
through the Brexit process and seeks to found new trading relationships with the 
EU27 and much of the rest of the world, and as the home nations each transition 
away from the old CAP schemes towards different arrangements for supporting 
agriculture.   

 

6. We would also point out that clause 17 does not place any obligations upon 
Defra Ministers to act in response to any adverse findings as regards food security.  
There should be clearer requirements relating to the degree of domestic self-
sufficiency and a clear commitment to prevent any further declines in self-
sufficiency.   

 

Clauses 27-30 – Fair dealing in the supply chain 

 

7. We welcome the fact that the Bill will allow for UK Government Ministers to 
introduce legislation relating to contracts between business purchasers of 
agricultural products and qualifying sellers, and can include creating obligations 
for the parties to contract in writing, to include or exclude certain terms and 
around pricing mechanism. 

 

8. Clauses 27-30 are welcome, including the significant flexibility that they confer 
on the Secretary of State to legislate in relation to contracts.  We also welcome the 
provisions in the clauses around enforcement and penalties in the event of a 

                                                

1 https://www.nfuonline.com/back-british-farming/campaign-news/nfu-calls-for-government-
commitment-on-british-food-self-sufficiency/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



breach.   The clauses do not however impose a duty on the Secretary of State to 
act, rather they provide him or her with a discretionary power to act.  

 

9. Because of the enabling nature of the Clause 27-30 provisions, their 
effectiveness or otherwise, in addressing issues in the supply chain will be depend 
in large part on the drafting, operation and enforcement of the secondary 
legislation. 

 

Clauses 31-32 – Provisions around fertilisers and animal ID 

 

10. NFU Cymru does not take any particular view on Clause 31 relating to fertilisers. 

 

11. In relation to clause 32 and animal ID, NFU Cymru recognises that animal 
diseases do not respect national borders and robust systems for animal 
identification, underpinned by the latest IT are needed not only for the purposes 
of preventing disease spread, but also to ensure that the UK is able to abide by the 
terms of any trade agreements it has entered into as far as those agreements may 
impose requirements relating to the identification and tracing of animal 
movements. 

 

12. Significant numbers of animals do move across the Wales-England border, and 
our members will be concerned to ensure that they are able to continue to do so, 
freely and without friction. Key to this will be ensuring that databases in each 
jurisdiction are able to talk to one another and exchange information in a 
seamless fashion. 

 

13. What information is held on each database, who has access to it and how will it 
be gated, and other operational considerations will need to be the subject of 
agreement between Defra and Welsh Government.  

 

Clause 33 – The Red Meat Levy 

 

14. The issue of repatriating the red-meat levy has proven to be a difficult and 
apparently insoluble problem, for many years.  NFU Cymru has been pressing hard 
for parties to come together and find a mutually agreeable solution to this 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



difficulty, so that red-meat levy collected in one GB country can be paid to a levy 
body in another GB country.   We successfully lobbied for provision around the red 
meat levy to be included in the first iteration of the Agriculture Bill, and we were 
pleased to see that it was also included in the second iteration of the Agriculture 
Bill. 

 

15. The Bill should now equip the various parties with the powers that they need to 
reach a fairer distribution of levy funds.   Farmers in Wales will be looking to all 
parties concerned to work together collaboratively to resolve this issue by arriving 
at an equitable and mutually agreed arrangement for the sharing out of the levy.   
We would emphasise that the powers that are about to be conferred upon the 
various parties need to be properly utilised and should fall into abeyance. 

 

16. Any arrangements around alternative methods of sharing out levy funds, 
should not be to the exclusion of joint working between the levy boards at the 
pre-competitive stage, including collaborative work around red-meat and health 
and climate change. 

 

Clause 34 – Agricultural tenancies  

 

17. NFU Cymru notes the amendments that the Bill proposes to make to the 
Agricultural Holdings Act 1986.  It is as yet unclear how these reforms at Clause 34 
will integrate and mesh with the new agricultural support policy that the Welsh 
government is in the process of formulating. 

 

18. NFU Cymru has long expressed concern for the tenanted sector and farm 
businesses who do not own the land they farm. The tenanted sector is important 
to Welsh agriculture, and we do not want the Welsh Government to move forward 
with the implementation of new policies to replace the CAP, until the impacts on 
the tenanted sector are properly understood, and until it can guarantee full and 
equal access to future support to farmers who do not own the land they farm. 

 

19. Further to this, the extent to which the proposed future scheme will lead to 
widespread land use change (and the removal of tenants from the land to achieve 
that) cannot be understood at this stage 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



20. Welsh Government have previously confirmed their intention to ensure fair 
access to future support  schemes by ensuring that contracts are not set for 
prohibitively long periods of time and that there are a wide range of 
environmental outcomes which can be achieved through agricultural activity, and 
by providing advice on tenancy agreements to tenants and landlords.   We look to 
Welsh Government to honour these undertakings as it takes forward policy 
development. 

 

21. NFU Cymru would like to have seen the Agriculture Bill make provision for 
requests for landlords’ consent or variation of terms under the Agricultural 
Tenancies Act 1995 (i.e. farm business tenancies), in addition to Agricultural 
Holdings Act 1986 tenancies. 

 

Clauses 36 and 37 – Organic products 

 

22. Wales has a relatively high proportion of organic agriculture, with 5.1% of our 
land area farmed organically, compared to 3.3% of England’s land area2.  It is 
important that the integrity of our organic sector is protected both domestically 
and in export destinations.   

 

23. The organic sector is potentially highly exposed to Brexit on account of 
certification requirements.  For the duration of the transition period our 
certification bodies continue to be recognised by the competent authorities as 
being able to attest to the compliance with EU organic regulation of products 
bearing that certification body’s logo. 

 

24. Although we know that food and feed registered as organic in the EU27 will 
continue to be accepted as organic in the UK, we do not as yet know whether the 
EU27 will continue to recognise food and feed registered in the UK as organic, to 
be organic3. 

 

                                                

2 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file
/758533/organics-statsnotice-23nov18.pdf 

3 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/trading-and-labelling-organic-food-if-theres-no-brexit-deal 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



25. NFU Cymru recognises the need which may therefore arise to regulate in 
relation to the certification of organic produce and activities relating to organic 
products.  We also note with interest the provisions at 36(5) and (6) which would 
allow the restriction or prohibition of the import of organic products for the 
purposes of controlling standards.  We believe that this sets an interesting 
precedent which could be extended to the conventional sector as well.   

 

Clauses 40-42 – WTO Agreement on Agriculture 

 

26. NFU Cymru notes that overall responsibility for ensuring that UK policies on 
domestic support are compliant with the WTO Agreement on Agriculture, will rest 
with the UK Government.  We accept this as the UK Government is the signatory 
to the Agreement on Agriculture at the WTO. 

 

27. We do however note that the Bill, as drafted, would equip the Secretary of 
State with some quite significant powers in terms of setting an overall UK limit on 
domestic support, as well as domestic support limits for each of the home nations.  
This is even though there remains ample headroom within the Agreement on 
Agriculture with regard to Amber Box support in the UK.  At Clause 41(4) it would 
appear that the Defra Secretary of State may introduce his own ceilings on 
support even when there is no prospect of the UK exceeding its Amber Box 
allowances with regard to the Agreement on Agriculture.  The Bill also proposes 
that the Secretary of State should act as the final arbiter with regard to any 
decisions around the classification of support.   

 

28. The exercise of these powers by Defra Ministers could therefore have the effect 
of constraining future policy choices in Wales by imposing limits on spending and 
precluding certain types of support.   

 

29. NFU Cymru notes the bilateral agreement reached between UK Government 
and Welsh Government4 on 21st March 2019 as to how these provisions would 
operate in practice.  Although this agreement related to the first iteration of the 
Agriculture Bill, we understand from comments made by Welsh Government to 

                                                

4 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/agriculture-bill-progress-with-devolved-
administrations/a-joint-statement-by-the-uk-government-and-the-welsh-government-bilateral-
agreement-on-the-agriculture-bill-and-world-trade-organisation-wto-agree 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



the House of Commons’ Agriculture Bill Committee5 that the provisions reached 
in the bilateral agreement will be carried over with this Bill.  

 

Clauses 43-44 and Schedule 5 – Wales  

 

30. The decision not to take powers allowing for the development and operation 
of future agricultural support schemes in Wales is of course a matter for Welsh 
Ministers.   

 

31. NFU Cymru recognises the greater expediency that the UK Government 
Agriculture Bill route would have offered Welsh Ministers in this regard.  It is 
however our view that using the National Assembly to pass an Agriculture (Wales) 
Bill in due course, is more consonant with the purposes having a devolved 
legislature and puts the legislative process back where it belongs. 

 

32. Although Schedule 5 does not carve out powers for Welsh Ministers to 
transition to or operate future agricultural support schemes in Wales, provisions in 
Schedule 5 will provide Welsh Ministers with delegated powers to legislate in 
areas previously occupied by EU, and make changes to retained EU law.   

 

33. In particular, NFU Cymru would draw the Committee’s attention to Schedule 5, 
Part 1 Paragraph 2.  In the 2020 iteration of the Agriculture Bill, powers conferred 
upon Welsh Ministers to modify legislation governing the basic payment scheme 
remain unaltered from the 2018 iteration, and allows Welsh Ministers to modify 
the basic payment scheme in order to simplify or improve it, including 
terminating greening payments.      

 

34. Powers for Ministers in England (at Clause 9) to modify legislation governing 
the basic payment scheme are far greater in their ambition, and reference 
simplifying the administration of the scheme, making its operation more efficient 
or effective, removing spent provisions, removing or reducing burdens and 
ensuring that sanctions and penalties are appropriate and proportionate. 

                                                

5 https://hansard.parliament.uk/commons/2020-02-13/debates/edcf61eb-0322-4656-970c-
1996f29e0dbc/AgricultureBill(ThirdSitting) 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 

35. The fact that powers to modify legacy BPS legislation in Wales are more 
modest does in our view represent a missed opportunity to deliver a genuine 
simplification of the CAP in Wales 

 

36. NFU Cymru is pleased to see that powers for Welsh Ministers to act in the 
event of exceptional market conditions are present at Schedule 5.  We note that 
the powers conferred upon Welsh Ministers are discretionary, and do not compel 
Welsh Ministers to act in the event of there being exceptional market conditions.  
We would further note that the term ‘exceptional market conditions’ is predicated 
on there being a ‘severe’ disturbance to agricultural markets or a serious threat of 
a ‘severe’ disturbance to agricultural markets.  NFU Cymru would suggest that the 
threshold of a ‘severe’ disturbance should be replaced with one of a ‘significant’ 
disturbance.   

 

General Observations on the UK Government’s Agriculture 
Bill 

37. NFU Cymru wishes to make the observation that the Bill, as it stands, 
represents a missed opportunity to legislate with regard to environmental, animal 
health and welfare standards in imported produce.  Despite multiple assurances 
from various UK Government Ministers around food standards after Brexit, the UK 
Government has failed to write such safeguards into the Agriculture Bill.    

 

38. In this regard we would draw the Committee’s particular attention to Clause 
36 (5) and (6) which allow Defra Ministers to restrict or prohibit the import of 
organic products for the purposes of controlling standards relating to organic 
products equivalent to those applicable in the UK.   We cannot see why similar 
safeguards cannot be introduced with regard to prohibiting the import of food 
produced to lower standards than those operational in the UK.   

 

39. Ultimately, it is futile for Governments in each of the home nations to develop 
comprehensive and ambitious domestic support policies, simply for the efforts of 
our farmers to be fatally undermined through the importation of products not 
produced to environmental, animal health and welfare standards which would be 
expected of them domestically.   

 

40. For trade and agricultural policies to properly cohere, the Agriculture Bill 
needs to contain provisions requiring that all imported into the UK should be 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



produced at least to equivalent standards of animal health and welfare, and 
environmental protection that are demanded of our own farmers. 

 

41. We would add as a final observation that the border between England and 
Wales is straddled by many hundreds of farms, which means that strong 
collaboration between UK Government, Defra and Welsh Government is needed 
on a number of issues to ensure that businesses which operate cross-border and 
not disadvantaged in any way.   

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 

 

 

 

Introduction 

1.1 The Tenant Farmers Association in Wales (TFA Cymru) is pleased to provide 
written evidence to the Welsh Assembly Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee to inform its consideration of the Legislative Consent 
Memorandum on the UK Agriculture Bill. 

1.2 TFA Cymru is only organisation dedicated to representing the interests of 
those who do not own the land they use for agriculture in Wales.  Its 
membership comprises farms of all types and sizes but active, family farms 
predominate.  

1.3 The tenanted sector of agriculture is responsible for farming at least one third 
of the agricultural area of Wales and approximately one quarter of that is now 
let under Farm Business Tenancies (FBTs).  Sector by sector, the proportion of 
farmed tenanted land is slightly higher in the upland, livestock and dairy 
sectors in comparison to other sectors.   

1.4 TFA Cymru recognises the opportunity afforded by the UK withdrawal from 
the European Union to put in place bespoke policies for food, farming and 
the countryside in the four countries of the United Kingdom and we 
recognise that this is a time of change, not just for agriculture but for the 
whole nation.  We have taken note of the decision of the Welsh Government 
not to seek to include provisions to allow for new financial assistance 
schemes which will instead form part of specific legislation in Wales 
following the conclusion of the Assembly elections.  We therefore envisage 
the transition to new arrangements in Wales to take somewhat longer than 
in England.  TFA Cymru believes it is sensible to take time to ensure that new 
schemes are developed well rather than just quickly and therefore this 
additional time is to be welcomed.  However, it must be used productively to 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 

Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee  

MCD mewn perthynas â Bil 
Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

LCM in relation to UK Agriculture Bill 

NHAMG (5) AB01 CCERA(5) AB01 
Ymateb gan Cymdeithas y Ffermwyr 
Tenant 

Evidence from Tenant Farmers 
Association 

Tudalen y pecyn 63

Eitem 3



ensure that new schemes properly reflect the needs of Welsh farmers and 
wider Welsh society 

Context 

2.1 Notwithstanding the opportunities that arise following our exit from the 
European Union, there are also challenges.  In particular, the UK Parliament 
is having to consider the Agriculture Bill without fully understanding the 
future trading relationships between the UK and the European Union and our 
position within the WTO in the event of the UK failing to reach a Free Trade 
Agreement with the EU before the Implementation Period Completion Date 
(currently 31 December 2020).   

2.2 This uncertainty will have a significant impact on the profitability, resilience 
and sustainability of Welsh agriculture.  It must be recognised that whatever 
policy framework is put in place by any new legislation, there must be 
sufficient flexibility to respond appropriately when there is greater certainty 
in our international trade position, particularly with respect to the European 
Union.  In this respect we welcome the decision of the Welsh Government to 
delay moving away from the existing arrangements too quickly. 

General Comments on the Bill as it Impacts on Wales 

3.1 TFA Cymru acknowledges that the Bill as presented has seen some significant 
change in comparison to the Bill introduced in the last Parliament.  We are 
grateful to see several improvements including the requirement upon the UK 
Government to report on food security and on reform of agricultural 
tenancies. 

3.2 However, there remain areas where TFA Cymru believes that the Bill needs 
further improvement in respect of its application to Wales and these are 
explained further within this written evidence.  Where appropriate, TFA 
Cymru has drafted suggested amendments to the Bill which it would 
encourage the Committee to recommend that Welsh Government presses 
the UK Government to introduce.  These can be found in Annex 1. 

Multi-Annual Financial Assistance Plans 

4.1 The TFA in England has welcomed the requirement upon the UK Secretary 
of State to prepare Multiannual Financial Assistance Plans, something which 
was entirely missing from the previous Bill.  However, within the context of 
Devolution, TFA Cymru would wish to see a legislative commitment to the 
principle that the four countries of the United Kingdom are provided with at 
least the same level of funding as they received previously to deliver 
agricultural and rural development policies and that this funding must be 
earmarked for the delivery of the objectives set out within the Bill.  

Tudalen y pecyn 64



Part 2: Chapter 1 – Food Security  

5.1 TFA Cymru welcomes the recognition of the need to consider matters of food 
security and that the Bill contains a requirement for the UK Government to 
prepare and lay before Parliament a report on food security.  However, TFA 
Cymru is disappointed that for such an important issue this is only to occur 
once every five years.  As this is such an important issue, TFA Cymru believes 
this should be an annual requirement upon the UK Government.  To achieve 
this, TFA Cymru supports the tabled amendment number 7 in the name of 
Fiona Bruce 

5.2 TFA Cymru also believes that the Government must be required to specify 
food security targets and to identify any actions it needs to prioritise in 
consultation with the Devolved Administrations if those targets are not being 
met.  See amendment TFA6. 

Schedule Five Part2 - Exceptional Market Conditions 

6.1 TFA Cymru welcomes the provisions within the Bill to allow for financial and 
other assistance to be made available to the farming industry at times of 
exceptional market conditions.  TFA Cymru would wish to be assured that 
this will cover natural phenomena such as drought, flood and disease as well 
as economic phenomena that may impact upon markets.  

6.2  TFA Cymru would also wish to have an assurance from the Welsh 
Government that this part of the legislation will cover not only situations of 
“acute” hardship or difficulty but that it will also be able to be invoked if 
“chronic” or long-lasting difficulties are apparent. This might involve things 
like endemic disease or structural changes in agricultural markets which may 
require farmers to undergo significant adjustment.  

6.3 TFA Cymru offers amendment TFA7W as a solution to these issues.    

Part 3: Chapter 1 - Collection and Sharing of Data 

7.1 TFA Cymru welcomes this Part of the Bill as it will provide the potential for a 
greater degree of information to be available about the operation of supply 
chains that will lead to more informed negotiation between farmers, 
processors, retailers and food service outlets. This has important links to the 
provisions set out in Part 3 Chapter 2 of the Bill dealing with provisions to 
ensure fairness within the supply chain. 

Part 3: Chapter 2 - Fair Dealing with Agricultural Producers 
and Others in the Supply Chain 

8.1 TFA Cymru is delighted that the UK Government is proposing to reserve 
significant powers to regulate the operation of supply chains and, in 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



particular, relationships between farmers and first purchasers. TFA Cymru 
believes that this is a vitally important role for Government in the face of 
significant market failure within agriculture and food supply chains.  
However, it is concerning that the UK Government does not see this forming 
part of an expanded role for the Groceries Code Adjudicator. TFA Cymru sees 
no reason why this responsibility should be placed anywhere else other than 
with the Groceries Code Adjudicator.  See amendment TFA8. 

Part 5: Marketing Standards, Organic Products and Carcass 
Classification  

9.1 TFA Cymru welcomes the inclusion within the Bill of powers for the 
Government to set marketing standards for agricultural products. It will be 
important to ensure that these are used to protect the high standards of 
production evident on Welsh farms in respect food safety, animal welfare and 
environmental management. It will be important to see this joined up with 
the Government’s policy on international trade such that these same 
standards apply to agricultural products imported into the UK from abroad.  
The UK Government has given an oral commitment to protect our high 
standards in trade and in signing new free trade agreements, but this also 
must be supported by clear legislation in order to sustain these arguments 
within the context of the World Trade Organisation. TFA Cymru  supports 
either of the tabled amendments numbered NC1 in the name of Luke Pollard 
or NC4 in the name of Simon Hoare. 

Agricultural Tenancies 

10.1 TFA Cymru is very pleased that the Bill includes Schedule 3 with 
amendments to certain aspects of agricultural tenancy legislation which 
formed part of the consultations on tenancy reform conducted the Welsh 
Government in 2019.  From discussions with Welsh Government, it has 
decided to proceed with what it considers to be the most urgent matters and 
those which were least contentious considering the consultation responses. 

10.2 TFA Cymru is pleased to support all the changes that are being made but 
there is a need for certain aspects to be improved. 

10.3 Whilst we welcome the new provisions which will allow a tenant the ability 
to object to a refusal from the landlord for consent to enter into a scheme 
introduced under the financial assistance provisions of the Bill or to carry out 
works in accordance with a statutory obligation, currently this only applies to 
tenancies regulated by the Agricultural Holdings Act 1986.  These provisions 
must be extended to tenancies regulated by the Agricultural Tenancies Act 
1995.  See amendment TFA9. 

10.4 Also, the Bill envisages that tenants can use these new provisions only if the 
landlord’s consent is required by the terms of the tenancy agreement or by a 
variation of the terms of the tenancy.  However, this should be widened to 

Tudalen y pecyn 66



include any situation where landlord’s consent is required.  For example, 
whilst a tenancy agreement itself may not require landlord’s consent, a 
scheme under which financial assistance has been provided may by its own 
terms require the tenant to have obtained landlord’s consent before 
participating. See amendment TFA10 (also included with TFA9). 

10.5 In addition, TFA Cymru believes it is opportune to look at widening this 
provision, as originally envisaged by the Tenancy Reform Industry Group and 
the Welsh Government consultation, to include the ability to counter 
restrictions upon tenants in tenancy agreements which would prevent either 
or both of the full and efficient farming of the holding or environmental 
improvements.  See amendment TFA10 (also included with TFA9). 

10.6 TFA Cymru also believes it is necessary to make it a requirement for 
regulations to be brought forward to give effect to the clauses providing 
tenants with the opportunity of objecting to a landlord’s refusal for consent.  
See amendment TFA11 (also included with TFA9). 

10.7 Given that Welsh ministers are not reserving powers for financial assistance 
schemes, there is a need to ensure that the provisions of this part of the 
schedule apply as and when Welsh Ministers come forward with new 
financial assistance schemes.  See amendment TFA12 (also included with 
TFA9). 

10.8 There was a further legislative change which was not deemed to be 
contentious following the tenancy reform consultations which, inexplicably, 
has not been taken forward in this Bill.  This was a provision to encourage 
landlords to consider letting for longer periods of time on Farm Business 
Tenancies (FBTs).  The proposal was to allow landlords granting new FBTs 
with an initial minimum term of 10 years and without Landlords’ scheduled 
break clauses, the ability to terminate the tenancy early in the following 
circumstances: 

 non-payment of rent (as an alternative to forfeiture); 
 breaches by the tenant of contractual terms or conditions; 
 the death of the tenant; 
 the landlord’s need to remove land from the holding where 

planning consent has been granted for non-agricultural use. 

10.9 To achieve this, the TFA is proposing amendment TFA13.  At the same time, 
the Agricultural Holdings (Arbitration on Notices) Order 1987 should be 
updated to provide the opportunity for tenants to serve a counter notice in 
respect of any Notice to Remedy served by a landlord, not just those requiring 
work. 

10.10 During the debate on Second Reading in the House of Commons, there was 
a call for the Bill to provide an extension to the eligibility for tenancy 
succession under the Agricultural Holdings Act 1986 to nephews, nieces and 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



grandchildren.  TFA Cymru would support this extension and has prepared 
amendments TFA14 and TFA15 for consideration in this respect.    

Conclusion 

11.1 TFA Cymru would welcome support from Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee for the changes it is proposing to the Bill. 

 

Annex 1 – Proposed Amendments 

 

TFA6 

Section 17, page 14, after line 32 insert the following:  

(3) As part of the report the Secretary of State must set out food security targets 
and specify and implement any necessary actions required to ensure those 
targets are met. 

 

TFA7W 

Schedule 5, Section 6, page 60 replace lines 32 and 33 with following: 

(a) there is an acute or chronic disturbance in agricultural markets or a serious 
threat of an acute or chronic disturbance in agricultural markets caused by 
economic or environmental factors, and 

 

TFA8 

Part 3, page 17 after line 33 insert the following: 

Chapter 1 

Groceries Code Adjudicator 

(20A) The Adjudicator established by the Groceries Code Adjudicator Act 2013 shall 
be responsible for ensuring compliance with Part 3 of this Act. 

Then renumber subsequent Chapters. 

 

TFA9 (New Clause) 

Schedule 3, Part 2 Page 56 after line 8 insert the following: 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



Requests for landlord’s consent or variation of terms 

30 Before section 28 insert— 

27A Disputes relating to requests for landlord’s consent or variation of terms 

(1) The appropriate authority must by regulations make provision for the 
tenant of an agricultural holding to refer for arbitration under this Act 
a request made by the tenant to the landlord where— 

(a) the request falls within subsection (3), and 

(b) no agreement has been reached with the landlord on the request. 

 

(2) The regulations may also provide that, where the tenant is given the 
right to refer a request to arbitration, the landlord and tenant may 
instead refer the request for third party determination under this Act. 

(3) A request falls within this subsection if— 

(a) it is a request for— 

(i) the landlord’s consent to a matter which under the terms 
of the tenancy requires such consent, or 

(ii) a variation of the terms of the tenancy, or 

(iii) the landlord’s consent to a matter which otherwise 
requires such consent 

(b) it is made for the purposes of— 

(i) enabling the tenant to request or apply for relevant 
financial assistance or relevant financial assistance of a 
description specified in the regulations, or 

(ii) complying with a statutory duty, or a statutory duty of a 
description specified in the regulations, applicable to the 
tenant, or 

(iii) to secure either or both of the full and efficient farming of 
the holding or an environmental improvement, and 

(c) it meets such other conditions (if any) as may be specified in the 
regulations. 

(4) The regulations may provide for the arbitrator or third party on a 
reference made under the regulations, where the arbitrator or third 
party considers it reasonable and just (as between the landlord and 
tenant) to do so— 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



(a)  to order the landlord to comply with the request (either in full
  or to the extent specified in the award or determination); 

(b) to make any other award or determination permitted by the 
regulations. 

(5) The regulations may (among other things) make provision— 

(a) about conditions to be met before a reference may be made; 

(b) about matters which an arbitrator or third party is to take into 
account when considering a reference; 

(c) for regulating the conduct of arbitrations or third party 
determinations; 

(d) about the awards or determinations which may be made by the 
arbitrator or third party, which may include making an order for 
a variation in the rent of the holding or for the payment of 
compensation or costs; 

(e)  about the time at which, or the conditions subject to which, an 
award or determination may be expressed to take effect; 

(f) for restricting a tenant’s ability to make subsequent references to 
arbitration where a reference to arbitration or third party 
determination has already been made under the regulations in 
relation to the same tenancy. 

(6) The provision covered by subsection (5)(e) includes, in the case of a 
request made for the purpose described in subsection (3)(b)(i)), 
conditions relating to the making of a successful application for 
assistance. 

(7) In this section— 

      “appropriate authority” means— 

   (a) in relation to England, the Secretary of State, and 

     (b) in relation to Wales, the Welsh Ministers; 

      “relevant financial assistance” means financial assistance under— 

(a) section 1 of the Agriculture Act 2020 (powers of Secretary of State 
to give financial assistance), 

(b) section 19 of, or paragraph 7 of Schedule 5 to, that Act (powers of 
Secretary of State and Welsh Ministers to give financial 
assistance in exceptional market conditions), or 

(c) a scheme of the sort mentioned in section 2(4) of that Act (third 
party schemes),or 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



(d) a scheme of financial assistance in whatever form introduced by 
Welsh Ministers;  

      “statutory duty” means a duty imposed by or under— 

(a) an Act of Parliament; 

    (b) an Act or Measure of the National Assembly for Wales; 

     (c) retained direct EU legislation. 

 

TFA10 

Schedule 3 Clause 7 page 50 delete lines 25 to 36 and replace with: 

(3) A request falls within this subsection if— 

(a) it is a request for— 

(i) the landlord’s consent to a matter which under the terms of the 
tenancy requires such consent, or 

(ii) a variation of the terms of the tenancy, or 

(iii) the landlord’s consent to a matter which otherwise requires such 
consent 

(b) it is made for the purposes of— 

(i) enabling the tenant to request or apply for relevant financial 
assistance or relevant financial assistance of a description 
specified in the regulations, or 

(ii) complying with a statutory duty, or a statutory duty of a 
description specified in the regulations, applicable to the tenant, 
or 

(iii) to secure either or both of the full and efficient farming of the 
holding or an environmental improvement, and 

TFA11 

Schedule 3 Clause 7, page 50, line 15, leave out “may” and insert “must” 

 

TFA12 

Schedule 3 Clause 7 page 51 at the end of line 34 delete “;” and replace with: 

,or 

Tudalen y pecyn 71



(d) a scheme of financial assistance in whatever form introduced by Welsh 
Ministers; 

 

TFA13 (New Clause) 

Schedule 3, Part 2 Page 56 after line 8 insert the following: 

30 Before section 8 insert -  

Termination of tenancies of 10 years or more 

7A - (1) Where a farm business tenancy has been granted for a fixed term 
of 10 years or more without any provision for the landlord to 
terminate the tenancy on a specific date or dates during the 
fixed term the landlord may serve notice to quit on the tenant of 
the holding using the provisions of the Agricultural Holdings Act 
1986 Schedule 3 Parts I and II in accordance with the Agricultural 
Holdings Act 1986 Schedule 4 and all Orders introduced as 
mentioned in that schedule in respect of the following cases –  

(i) Case B 
(ii) Case D 
(iii) Case E 
(iv) Case F 
(v) Case G 

(2) In addition to any compensation required to be paid to the 
tenant by the landlord following the termination of a tenancy 
using Case B, the landlord shall pay additional compensation to 
the tenant at an amount equal to ten years’ rent of the holding 
or attributed to the part of the holding upon which notice to quit 
has been served at the rate at which rent was payable 
immediately before the termination of the tenancy. 

TFA14 (New Clause) 

Schedule 3, Part 1 Page 54 after line 20 insert the following: 

21A The Agricultural Holdings Act 1986 Section 49(3) shall be replaced with: 

(3) In this section and sections 50 to 58 below (and in Part I of Schedule 6 
to this Act as applied by section 50(4))— 

“close relative” of the retiring tenant means— 

(a) the wife husband or civil partner of the retiring tenant; 

(b) a brother or sister of the retiring tenant; 

(c) a child of the retiring tenant; 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



(d) a nephew or niece of the retiring tenant; 

(e) a grandchild of the retiring tenant; 

(f) any person (not within (b) or (c) or (d) or (e) above) who, in the 
case of any marriage or civil partnership or other cohabitation 
to which the retiring tenant has been at any time a party, has 
been treated by the latter as a child of the family in relation to 
that marriage or civil partnership or other cohabitation; 

TFA15 (New Clause) 

Schedule 3, Part 1 Page 54 after line 20 insert the following: 

21B The Agricultural Holdings Act 1986 Section 35 (2) shall be replaced with: 

(2) In sections 36 to 48 below (and in Part I of Schedule 6 to this Act)— 

“close relative” of a deceased tenant means— 

(a) the wife husband or civil partner of the deceased; 

(b) a brother or sister of the deceased; 

(c) a child of the deceased; 

(d) a nephew or niece of the deceased; 

(e) a grandchild of the deceased; 

(f) any person (not within (b) or (c) or (d) or (e) above) who, in the 
case of any marriage or civil partnership or other cohabitation 
to which the deceased was a at any time a party, was treated by 
the deceased as a child of the family in relation to that marriage 
or civil partnership or other cohabitation;    

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 73



1 
 

Climate Change, Environment, and Rural Affairs Committee 
 
Legislative Consent Memorandum (‘LCM’) in relation to the UK 
Agriculture Bill 
 
Submission of written evidence by Hybu Cig Cymru – Meat Promotion Wales 
 
 
Hybu Cig Cymru - Meat Promotion Wales (HCC) is the statutory industry-led levy 
organisation responsible for the development, promotion and marketing of Welsh 
lamb, beef and pork. It undertakes promotional campaigns at home and abroad, is 
involved in research and development which benefits the efficiency and sustainability 
of the whole red meat supply chain, as well as collating and analysing market 
intelligence.  
 
As a part of the Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee’s work 
on the UK Bill, regarding the new provisions requiring the Assembly’s consent 
(namely food security, fertilisers and identification and traceability of animals, 
agricultural tenancies and organic products), HCC wish to specifically comment on 
section 32 - identification and traceability of animals. We also wish to highlight the 
need for levy repatriation powers and have comments on section 33 – red meat levy: 
payments between levy bodies in GB.  
 
 
Section 32 - Identification and traceability of animals 
 
Section 32 allows the establishment of a body which could have functions (relating to 
the identification of animals; collecting, managing and making available information 
on animal identification, movements and health) assigned to it which are in relation 
to England, Scotland and Wales. As such, we believe there is a risk that a body with 
current powers to act in only one geographical area could be granted powers in other 
geographic areas of the UK, thereby undermining devolved arrangements.  
 
Section 32 also refers to requirements to establish systems for identification and 
registration of animals not being applicable to England. We are unclear from the 
wording of this section as to the implications on devolved arrangements and would 
ask the Committee to further investigate the rationale and implications of this. 
 
 
Section 33 – Red Meat Levy: payments between levy bodies in GB 
 
HCC is delegated by Welsh Ministers to raise the Welsh Red Meat Levy and 
undertake the promotion and development functions in respect of the Welsh red 
meat industry as outlined in the Red Meat (Wales) Measure 2010. 
 
Statutory levy has existed in the red meat sector for a number of years to fund 
activities to assist with the development of this sector, notably work that would not be 
carried out under normal market conditions. E.g. R&D, brand marketing, market 
research and facilitation of market access leading to export certification. This is a 
result of the fragmented nature of the industry and the fact that producers in these 

Tudalen y pecyn 74

Eitem 4.1

https://office365.eu.vadesecure.com/safeproxy/v3?f=tiUoWcFe63G2ZYS5Pu_Z8oRx25XqTp2Om9IvsTPG2lZ9PiIm8fOwYwVPR7bAtlGv&i=hgaeNd1g3gdCinehvdRDUP_YG-ory2l3CWQL75uVKWOxkF0FNDIWcNhGDxoR0iSlhSdOa3OVM8rKipd0xtfxVQ&k=aisi&r=sywTiJVKjva_cNtMhW1eBZmOJFaNdgFBRRtUJT0hpzzOxmpnJexMzOhs79bAW-4w&u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cynulliad.cymru%2Flaid%2520documents%2Flcm-ld13036%2Flcm-ld13036%2520-e.pdf
https://office365.eu.vadesecure.com/safeproxy/v3?f=tiUoWcFe63G2ZYS5Pu_Z8oRx25XqTp2Om9IvsTPG2lZ9PiIm8fOwYwVPR7bAtlGv&i=hgaeNd1g3gdCinehvdRDUP_YG-ory2l3CWQL75uVKWOxkF0FNDIWcNhGDxoR0iSlhSdOa3OVM8rKipd0xtfxVQ&k=aisi&r=sywTiJVKjva_cNtMhW1eBZmOJFaNdgFBRRtUJT0hpzzOxmpnJexMzOhs79bAW-4w&u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.cynulliad.cymru%2Flaid%2520documents%2Flcm-ld13036%2Flcm-ld13036%2520-e.pdf
https://office365.eu.vadesecure.com/safeproxy/v3?f=mo346WPHkcIL1tPtM8QrpYCWCO94uDysBqh8lLbfUclXX2DgIoBFZTnQ9ISLTZRJ&i=v6Qn7NiSm1R7pdOKUsCJ4vaPKURrS_j-ivJiDBgXDn2JDtttIER1OwsXCnSk8VrGvNG4UBy_AqaSDiKf4apNGg&k=zWpn&r=2V6QrU2tHeagFdMWtRHQ3GJSdXz74wdaFp79CcnTKQ-DQ94GC8OHe9UZMwVAG0RE&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.assembly.wales%2Fen%2Fbus-home%2Fcommittees%2FPages%2FCommittee-Profile.aspx%3Fcid%3D444


2 
 

sectors, and in many cases processors too, are invariably too small to be able to 
resource such areas of work themselves.  
 
Red meat levy (raised on all cattle, sheep and pigs slaughtered in GB) is collected at 
the point of slaughter (abattoirs) by the Red Meat Levy Board in that country. The 
levy is therefore based on the geographical location of abattoirs and not on the origin 
of the livestock. Levy collected at abattoirs in England, Scotland and Wales is 
currently used by the Red Meat Levy Board in that particular country regardless of 
where the animal originated.  
 
The current methodology of red meat levy apportionment therefore fails to take into 
account the trading patterns that exist across GB borders. Levy paid by the 
producers who are breeding, rearing and finishing animals in one country may be 
used to fund the red meat promotional and developmental activities in another. 
Furthermore, the system is extremely vulnerable to changes and restructuring within 
the abattoir sector and the long-term trend has been towards fewer larger abattoirs 
located more closely to large centres of population. 
 
Devolution of policy, strategy and delivery to the separate GB administrations means 
that each Red Meat Levy Board is accountable both to their respective Ministers and 
to their levy payers. As a result, the perceived lack of accountability and inequality 
within red meat levy apportionment, in regard to the benefit levy payers receive when 
their livestock are slaughtered in a different country, is a key consideration for the 
Red Meat Levy Boards in agreeing a change to the levy system. 
 
Following a series of discussions on joint working, it has been agreed by the Red 
Meat Levy Boards across GB that red meat levy apportionment needs amending, so 
that levy is apportioned in a way which reflects the livestock production activity 
across England, Scotland and Wales.  
 
The three GB Red Meat Levy Boards were tasked by GB Ministers to determine a 
fair and equitable methodology for future levy redistribution. This work has now 
concluded and an agreed methodology has been presented to GB Ministers. 
 
Legislation is currently in place in England, Scotland and Wales to control how red 
meat levy can be used and as such legislative changes will be required to 
accommodate a new levy apportionment system.1 The Bill makes provision to confer 
powers on Ministers, acting jointly, to establish a scheme that requires agricultural 
boards within GB to redistribute levy between themselves. HCC welcomes this 
provision and is content with the detail. 
 
 
 

 
1 England: Agriculture and Horticulture Development Board Order 2008. 
  Scotland: Quality Meat Scotland Order 2008. 
  Wales: Red Meat Industry (Wales) Measure 2010. 

Tudalen y pecyn 75



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 

Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee  

MCD mewn perthynas â Bil 
Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

LCM in relation to UK Agriculture Bill 

NHAMG (5) AB08 CCERA(5) AB08 
Ymateb gan RSPB Cymru Evidence from RSPB Cymru 

 

The RSPB has a number of priorities with regards to the Agriculture Bill, that it 
shares with likeminded organisations and coalitions that are advocating for 
policies that secure sustainable land management and deliver public value for 
public money. These priorities include:  

  

• Maintain the core principle of ‘public money for public goods’. This is 
essential to the reforms set out by the UK Government, and to meeting a 
range of environmental and animal welfare commitments.   

  

• Secure legal safeguards on environmental, food safety and animal welfare 
standards of imports, to ensure that farmers in the UK are not undercut by 
imported food produced to lower standards. This is not currently included in 
the bill.   

  

• Build on the Conservative manifesto commitment to maintain funding, with 
a long-term funding framework in the bill, providing the certainty that 
farmers need to have confidence in these reforms. There is currently no long-
term funding framework outlined in the bill.    

  

• Funding commitments should be backed up by a duty on ministers to set 
budgets for the proposed multi-annual financial assistance plans that 
reflect the scale of financial need associated with the aims of the bill, related 
environmental targets, and needs of the climate and environment 
emergency.  

  

• Funding commitments and mechanisms should encompass the needs of 
devolved Governments  

i.e. there should be an assurance of adequate funds for Governments across 
the UK, to be used appropriately to help meet devolved policies and priorities.  

Tudalen y pecyn 76

Eitem 4.2



  

• Introduce powers to protect the environment and animal welfare and 
better regulate farming and land management, building on our current 
baseline standards. This is a major gap in the bill at present.   

  

• Ensure that all spending on productivity measures contributes to the 
provision of public goods, securing win-wins for farming and the 
environment, and contributing toward more sustainable, humane food 
production   

  

• Improve fairness in the supply chain, by placing a duty on ministers to use 
the powers in the bill that would better regulate the relationship between 
farmers and the purchasers of agricultural products   

  

The introduction of new duties to (a) have regard to food production in the 
exercise of the financial assistance purposes in clause 1 of the Bill, and (b) to 
provide a report to Parliament every five years relating to the food security of the 
United Kingdom are seen as broadly positive given the former specifically 
requires that:  

  

“In framing any financial assistance scheme, the Secretary of State must have 
regard to the need to encourage the production of food by producers in England 
and its production by them in an environmentally sustainable way.”   

  

This inclusion should (still requires proper legal opinion) address concerns 
around there being no requirement in the original bill to consider sustainability 
when supporting investments in productivity under clause 1(2).   

  

We are comfortable with the inclusion of both new duties, however we believe 
that any further movement in this direction is likely to compromise the core 
environmental principles of the Bill, and its potential effectiveness.   

    RSPB Cymru, 28th February 2020 Food production in the context of the Agriculture 

Bill1.  

                                                
1 The following applies equally to policy proposals for Wales.   

Tudalen y pecyn 77



  

There has been significant debate about food production in the context of the 
Agriculture Bill. The provision of public goods can and should go hand-in-hand 
with the production of healthy, sustainable food. A key element of the bill are 
the powers to improve the position of farmers in the supply chain and enable a 
better market return for the food and other marketable goods that they 
produce. It is essential that the Government use these powers, and the bill 
should place a duty on Ministers to do so.   

With a fairer supply chain enabling a better return for marketable goods to 
farmers and growers, and public money for non-marketable public goods, the 
bill can be described as having at its heart a dual income strategy for the future 
of farming: a better income from the market for food and other products. And a 
stable and justifiable income from the public in return for the environmental 
and animal welfare benefits that society demands, but which the market does 
not reward.   

In some cases, farmers will be rewarded for managing their land in ways that 
benefit the environment that may be unconnected to food production, such as 
large-scale tree planting to tackle the climate emergency. In other cases, public 
money will pay for changes to the way that farmers grow food that produce 
wider public benefits, such as the adoption of regenerative and agroecological 
farming methods that benefit biodiversity.   

In the context of the latter, there is an increasing body of evidence that investing 
in our natural environment can yield real benefits for food production. A major 
study2 published in 2015 found that putting 8% of an arable farm into 
environmental measures, and managing these intensively for wildlife, led to a 
25% increase in net yield for flowering crops (field beans), and no net loss of yield 
for wind pollinated crops (wheat and barley). This was due to the increase in 
pollinators and crop pest predators arising from the creation of habitats such as 
wildflower margins.   

For hill farming, there are an increasing number of farmers within in the industry 
who are taking a more extensive, nature-friendly approach to farming and land 
management in order to improve their profitability. A report recently 
commissioned by the RSPB, National Trust and The   

Wildlife Trusts3 makes the case that having fewer livestock often improves 
environmental outcomes, whilst also reducing variable and fixed costs. In a 
sector where agricultural activity is generally loss making, and farmers are price 
takers, reducing costs is known to be the best way of improving profitability and 
building financial resilience. This report demonstrates that nature-friendly hill 

                                                
2 Pywell, R.F., et al (2015) Wildlife-friendly farming increases crop yield: evidence for ecological intensification. Proc. R.Soc. B 2015 282 

20151740;DOI1098/rspb.2015.1740.  
3 Clark, C., Scanlon, B., Hart, K. (2019) Less is more: Improving profitability and the natural environment in hill and other marginal farming systems. 

Available at https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2019-  

Tudalen y pecyn 78



farming, supported by public money for public goods, can not only deliver 
significant environmental benefits to society, but also improve the underlying 
profitability of the agricultural operation.   

Changes to the Welsh schedule:  

The removal of powers to provide financial assistance beyond modifying existing 
CAP schemes is welcomed4. The original proposal to retain powers (in Wales) to 
provide extensive financial assistance, including general financial assistance to 
farm, forestry and rural businesses, had the potential to undermine developing 
and future progressive land management policies (in Wales and across the UK) 
based on public goods and value for money.   

We also view the introduction of a sunset clause of the end of 2024 for many of 
the provisions in the schedule as a positive as this creates the imperative for the 
Welsh Government to develop new policy.     
  

 

                                                
4 This statement is based on the understanding that payments beyond the CAP in Wales will be enabled via a Welsh Agriculture Bill.  

    RSPB Cymru, 28th February 2020  

Tudalen y pecyn 79



 

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 

Climate Change, Environment and 
Rural Affairs Committee  

MCD mewn perthynas â Bil 
Amaethyddiaeth y DU 

LCM in relation to UK Agriculture Bill 

NHAMG (5) AB09 CCERA(5) AB09 
Ymateb gan Yr Ymddiriedolaeth 
Genedlaethol 

Evidence from National Trust 
 

 

Submission from the National Trust in Wales to the Climate 
Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee, Welsh 
Assembly  

The National Trust (NT) exists to care for the special places of Wales so that they 
can be enjoyed everyone, forever. We place great importance on the conservation, 
management and enjoyment of the natural and historic environment both within 
and beyond our boundaries. We care for 157 miles of beautiful Welsh coast, 
46,000 hectares of land, 97% of which is registered as agricultural, and ten of the 
fourteen peaks over 3000 feet. We are the guardian of 18 of Wales’s finest castles, 
houses, gardens and industrial sites. We care for archaeological sites, designed 
and cultural landscapes, buildings, architecture and parks and gardens, 175 
Scheduled Ancient Monument and 381 listed buildings. We currently have 
approximately 240 agricultural tenancies, 6000 volunteers and welcomed 1.8 
million visitors to our properties in the last year. Two-hundred thousand National 
Trust members live in Wales.  

We believe that the UK’s withdrawal from the European Union presents an 
opportunity to establish an ambitious and environmentally responsible land 
management policy. Given the twin threats posed by the climate emergency and 
biodiversity crisis there is an urgent need to introduce a system in which 
sustainable and forward-looking land based businesses can thrive and deliver 
what the nation and the public want, within a framework of protection and 
restoration of all aspects of our precious natural and historic environment.   

The current subsidy system is not delivering for farmers, society or the 
environment. Leaving the EU provides an unprecedented opportunity to revitalise 
our countryside in a way that meets the needs of people and the environment, for 
generations to come. The National Trust therefore supports the Agriculture Bill’s 
introduction of a new environmental land management system for England 
based on the principle of public money delivering public goods and by extension 
we would like to see a similar basis for Wales (a devolved matter). Specifically this 

Tudalen y pecyn 80

Eitem 4.3



should apply to benefits (public goods) such as adaptation to climate change, 
improved water quality, soil quality, heritage conservation and public access, for 
which no functioning market exists.   

As the UK looks to urgently address climate change and biodiversity loss, the 
Agriculture Bill in England and similar instruments across the devolved nations, 
will be some of the most important tools to unlock and deliver practical solutions.  
However, these should not be seen as the totality of UK government food and 
farming policy. They must be supported by long-term funding, based on an 
independent assessment of need, alongside the provision of good quality advice 
for farmers, safeguards against the import of low standard food, and the 
enforcement of environmental standards and protections.    

Given the urgent need for environmental restoration, there should be no delay in 
transitioning to a new system and there is a need to maintain a clear focus for 
public spending by not broadening the list of public goods. Productivity support 
must help deliver public goods.   

We welcome many of the new provisions in the Bill and the overall commitment 
to a public goods model. Especially welcome are those provisions relating to 
multi-annual financial plans, and broad powers to ensure fairness in the supply 
chain, although we believe that these can be strengthened further.  We also want 
provisions to ensure high standards of farming and land management, and better 
regulation. This is currently a major gap due to prospective loss of Cross 
Compliance within the Basic Payment Scheme.    

Upland farmers are well-placed to deliver public goods, such as improving water 
quality, enhancing landscapes and managing upland streams to improve water 
quality and reduce flood risk. These farms can profit from a system based on 
public money for public goods, and should receive dedicated help to move to the 
new system.   

National Trust view of devolved powers and UK frameworks   

 

We recognise that the UK will need to operate as a single market once it leaves 
the EU’s single market and that this requires the UK government to have single 
rules on many regulations if it is to agree trade deals with other countries. 
However, we believe that powers which are currently devolved, including most 
environmental matters, should be passed on to the devolved administrations 
following departure from the EU.  We believe that Westminster should not seek to 
re-reserve (ie. take back any powers which are currently devolved), that the 
subsidiarity principle should apply and that the distribution of funding for 
agriculture and land use should be on the basis of need, not population as with 
the Barnett formula.  

  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 81



There is thus a need to move to a shared UK framework, based on the following:  

  
• Maintaining a set of common principles and ambitions/agreed framework 

across all four nations is highly desirable, to avoid a race to the bottom and to 
address cross-border issues (landscapes, rivers and ecosystems do not 
recognise political borders).    

• Allow for UK to show commitment to international commitments that it has 
signed up to individually or as part of the EU.  

• Ensure UK acts as a single market for the purposes of signing new trade 
agreements   

Common principles should include commitment to strong and independent 
environmental governance, polluter pays principle, precautionary principle, 
subsidiarity.  The common principles/framework should not be set at Westminster 
and ‘imposed’ on devolved nations so should be agreed jointly by all four countries 
– ie. all four nations should opt into ‘pooling’ their sovereignty. We would like to 
see this principles clearly set-out in the Bill.  

The framework should set standards, but should be sufficiently flexible to allow for 
implementation at the devolved level, in ways which reflect national differences.  
The details needed in the framework may depend on the nature of future trade 
agreements (eg whether UK strikes out on its own or just mirrors EU regulations).  
The framework should set out that funding for environment and agriculture 
should be allocated on the basis of need, drawing on research carried out with 
RSPB and Wildlife Trusts1,2  

Specific comments – our comments in blue  

  

Clause 17: Duty to report to Parliament on UK food security, as defined by five 
factors. We note that food security often becomes conflated and confused with 
the idea of self-sufficiency or ‘food sovereignty’. Put simply, if the aim is food 
sovereignty, then the aim of policy should be to reduce food exports. If the aim is 
food security, then the policy should be to have good relations and a trade policy 
to support imports and international supply chains, but not at any cost. In terms of 
the ability of the UK to respond to a global crisis that interrupts global food 
networks, then a more optimal approach is to support farmers and other land 

                                                
1 Rayment, M. (2017). Assessing the costs of Environmental Land Management in the UK. Commissioned by the RSPB, 

National Trust and Wildlife Trusts. Accessed from: https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-

ofenvironmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf  

  
2 Rayment, Matt. (2019). Paying for public goods from land management: How much will it cost and how might we pay?  

Final Report A report for the RSPB, the National Trust and The Wildlife Trusts. 10.13140/RG.2.2.11704.49929  

Tudalen y pecyn 82

https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf
https://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/documents/assessing-the-costs-of-environmental-land-management-in-the-uk-final-report-dec-2017.pdf


managers to deliver other outcomes during ordinary times - for instance farming 
for environmental results – but retaining their ability to increase production if a 
crisis was to emerge.   

Protecting and enhancing the asset base, like soil, pollinators and water, will 
therefore be fundamental to retaining our ability to produce food well into the 
future, with less reliance on imported or unsustainable inputs.  

If reports are mandated, they should go both to Parliament and to Welsh 
Government as cooperation will be essential in dealing with issues around food 
security and food and farming are devolved matters.   

 

Clause 27: Fair dealing obligations of business purchasers of agricultural 
products Powers for UK Secretary of State to impose obligations on business 
purchasers of agricultural products in relation to contracts they make for the 
purchase of such products from qualifying sellers, including mandatory terms.  It 
is difficult to see how this would work on a UK basis as Welsh Government view 
this is a devolved matter, as it is confined to the agricultural sector. However, we 
are open to receiving and considering more information on how this might work.  

Clause 31: Fertilisers Powers on Ministers to regulate content of fertilisers and of 
material intended for the feeding of animals. We expect Welsh Ministers to use 
these powers to help support a proposed Clean Air Act for Wales.  

Clause 32: Identification and traceability of animals. Powers relating to collecting, 
managing and making available information regarding the identification, 
movement or health of animals, or the means of identifying animals. Welsh 
Government view that these are devolved matters as they relate to the agricultural 
sector, animal health and animal welfare.  We support this view.  

Clause 33: Red Meat Levy: payments between levy bodies in Great Britain.  
Repatriation to Wales of levy payments (approx. £1m pa) collected when Welsh 
livestock are slaughtered in England. We welcome this clause and believe that 
investment from the repatriated levies should be used to develop local supply 
chains in support of the Sustainable Farming Scheme in Wales.  

Clause 44: Duration of provision in relation to Wales. Ensures that the specific 
provisions expire at the end of 2024. The clause also allows Welsh Ministers, by 
regulations, to make transitional, transitory or saving provisions in connection with 
this section. It is preferable that the transition timeline for Wales corresponds with 
that of England.   

  

Clause 46: Data protection – no comments  

Tudalen y pecyn 83



Clauses 47 to 54 (and Schedule 7). General and final provision about regulations, 
including procedures and related matters including powers to make 
consequential. More information is needed in order to answer this. We are 
concerned about potential asymmetry of powers in UK Gov/Welsh Govt.   

Schedule 3 and clause 34: Agricultural tenancies. Amendments to the 
Agricultural  Holdings Act 1986 and Agricultural Tenancies Act 1995.  The bulk of 
the amendments are intended to update and modify provision for agricultural 
tenancies in the 1986 Act to provide more flexibility, remove barriers to investment 
and improve the practical operation of the 1986 Act in relation to agricultural 
tenancies.  We regonise the conflict in the current landlord – tenant relationship in 
terms of payment schemes and welcome the ambition for long term payment 
schemes which can support public goods delivery, particularly those considered 
‘non-agricultural’ activities. There is work to be done on this.   

Schedule 5 and clause 43.  We are concerned that this offers potential for delayed 
transition which is an unacceptable outcome.    

Schedule 5, Part 1: Financial support after exiting the EU. Provides powers for the 
Welsh Ministers to make regulations to modify, after exiting the EU, retained EU 
law relating to the basic payment scheme, and include powers to simplify or 
improve the basic payment scheme or to terminate greening payments.  We 
welcome this in principle, in the context of our views on devolved matters and UK 
wide frameworks.  

Schedule 5, Part 2: Intervention in Agricultural Markets.  Provides powers for 
Welsh Ministers to provide financial assistance to support agricultural producers in 
Wales whose incomes are being or are likely to be adversely affected by 
exceptional market.  We are concerned that these powers require further 
qualification regarding the specific terms, duration and alignment with England 
to ensure that the transition to a public goods scheme is not delayed or the UK 
internal market distorted. It is not clear if the England and Wales markets will be 
viewed separately and therefore whether ministers can make different 
determinations of exceptional market conditions.  

Schedule 5, Part 3: Collection and sharing of data Provides powers for Welsh 
Ministers to require a person in, or closely connected with, an agri-supply chain to 
provide information about any of the person’s activities connected with the supply 
chain so far as the activities are in Wales. We welcome these powers with a proviso 
that the information collected is consistent with the aims of acheiving sustainable 
land management (sustainable management of natural resources) and the 
proposed Sustainable Farming Scheme.  We think there is merit in considering 
the provision of data by an individual to be akin to a public good but only if the 
data relates to true public goods, not food production.  

Tudalen y pecyn 84



Schedule 5, Part 4: Marketing standards and carcass classification. Welsh 
Ministers can regulate the standards which apply to certain products marketed in 
Wales and carcass classification by slaughterhouses in Wales. We would see these 
integrated with standards in sustainability measures.  

Tudalen y pecyn 85



1 

Ymateb Ysgrifenedig gan Lywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr 
Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig sef Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2020-
21 

Argymhelliad 1. 

Yn y dyfodol, ynghyd â chyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru, dylid cynnwys asesiad 
cynhwysfawr o’i heffaith gyffredinol ar lefelau carbon. Er mwyn llywio’r asesiad hwn, 
dylai Llywodraeth Cymru gynnal dadansoddiad o effaith y penderfyniadau yn ei chyllideb 
ar lefelau carbon. 

Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 

Ochr yn ochr â'r Gyllideb ddrafft, roedd y Gweinidog Cyllid a’r Trefnydd wedi cyhoeddi Cynllun 
Gwella’r Gyllideb, sy’n nodi camau pellach i weld sut y gellir gwreiddio asesiad o effaith carbon 
ein rhaglenni gwariant yn fwy cadarn ym mhroses y gyllideb. Mae’r asesiad o effaith carbon 
rhaglenni gwariant yn fater trawsbynciol y mae pob Gweinidog yn gyfrifol amdano a dylai fod yn 
sail i’r penderfyniadau cyllido y mae Gweinidogion yn eu cymryd wrth bennu cynlluniau gwario 
MEG manwl. Fodd bynnag, nid yw asesu effaith garbon benodol buddsoddiadau unigol bob 
amser yn broses syml. Er enghraifft, mae effaith lleihau carbon buddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru 
mewn seilwaith gwefru trydan yn debygol o fod yn ddibynnol iawn ar y penderfyniadau rheoleiddiol 
y mae Llywodraeth y DU yn eu gwneud ynghylch cerbydau tanwydd ffosil. Pan fydd hynny’n 
briodol ac yn ystyrlon, byddwn yn ystyried effaith gynyddol gwariant Llywodraeth Cymru, yn 
ogystal â'r effaith ehangach y mae gweithredu polisi yn ei chael ar allyriadau carbon. Wrth wneud 
hynny, byddwn yn parhau i ddibynnu ar dystiolaeth ein hymgynghorwyr newid hinsawdd statudol, 
sef Pwyllgor y DU ar y Newid yn yr Hinsawdd (UKCCC), ar gyfer pa rai o fuddsoddiadau 
Llywodraeth Cymru fydd yn cael yr effaith fwyaf. Yn ogystal, bydd datblygu’r Cynllun Cyflenwi 
Carbon Isel nesaf yn nodi manylion y modd y bydd polisïau allweddol yn caniatáu i ni gwrdd â’n 
cyllideb garbon, gan roi eglurder a sicrwydd i fusnesau ac i unigolion. 

Argymhelliad 2. 

Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn o fewn 3 mis ynghylch datblygiad 
y Cynllun Twf Amgylcheddol. Dylai hyn gynnwys amserlen ar gyfer gweithredu’r Cynllun; 
gwybodaeth am unrhyw gynlluniau i ymgynghori ar y cynigion; a gwybodaeth am yr 
amcanion a’r canlyniadau y bwriedir i’r Cynllun eu cyflawni. 

Ymateb: Derbyn 

Bydd adroddiad ar gael ym Mai 2020 ar ddatblygiad y Cynllun Twf Amgylcheddol. Gellir darparu 
adroddiad ac amserlen ar gyfer creu’r cynllun i’r Pwyllgor ar hyn o bryd. Megis dechrau y mae’r 
gwaith, ac felly mae’n bur annhebygol y bydd cynllun gweithredu neu amserlen cyflawni ar gael 
yn y tri mis nesaf yn unol â’r cais. Darperir gwybodaeth am ein cynlluniau i ymgynghori ar y 
cynigion. Mae’n annhebygol y bydd amcanion neu ganlyniadau Cynllun Twf Amgylcheddol ar 
gael bryd hynny, ond gellir adrodd ar gynnydd. 

Tudalen y pecyn 86

Eitem 4.4



2 
 

Argymhelliad 3.  
 
Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru gyhoeddi asesiad o’r goblygiadau ariannol gan gynnwys 
costau a buddion fersiwn nesaf ei chynllun datgarboneiddio. Dylid cynnwys hyn ochr yn 
ochr ag asesiad o effaith carbon pob polisi neu ymyriad.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 
 
Eisoes disgwylir i adrannau ystyried cost ac effaith pob ymyriad fel rhan o’r broses o ddatblygu 
polisïau. Fodd bynnag, nod y Cynllun Carbon Isel yw pennu sut y byddwn yn bodloni ein cyllideb 
garbon, gan hefyd ddarparu gwybodaeth i randdeiliaid ehangach am y modd rydym ni’n 
gweithredu. Mae’r cynllun yn cydgrynhoi camau gweithredu ar draws y llywodraeth ac ni ddylai 
fod yn fecanwaith i grynhoi asesiadau effaith pob cam gweithredu unigol. 
 
Nid yw Deddf yr Amgylchedd (Cymru) yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i ni gyhoeddi asesiad o gost ac 
effaith pob ymyriad. Mae hyn yr un fath â’r sefyllfa yn yr Alban a’r DU. Fodd bynnag, byddwn yn 
cynnal arfarniad ehangach o’r modd y mae’r cynllun yn cefnogi’r nodau llesiant. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 4.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog ddarparu’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch a yw’n 
credu bod y cyllid a ddyrannwyd i’r cynlluniau cartrefi cynnes, Nest ac Arbed, yn 
ddigonol ar gyfer mynd i’r afael â’r problemau tlodi tanwydd yng Nghymru.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae tystiolaeth a gyflwynwyd i’r Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 
fel rhan o’r ymchwiliad i dlodi tanwydd, yn awgrymu bod angen gwella effeithlonrwydd ynni 
15,000 o gartrefi’r flwyddyn i waredu tlodi tanwydd yn y pymtheng mlynedd nesaf. Os derbynnir 
yr amcangyfrifon hyn, yna bydd angen dyblu nifer y cartrefi sy’n elwa ar fuddsoddiad trwy’r 
Rhaglen Cartrefi Clyd, sef 6000 cartref y flwyddyn ar gyfartaledd ar hyn o bryd. Ystyrir hyn fel 
rhan o’n cynllun drafft newydd i drechu tlodi tanwydd y bwriadwn ei gyhoeddi yn yr wythnosau 
nesaf. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 5.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog ddarparu’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch yr 
amgylchiadau sydd wedi arwain at newid rheolwr y cynllun Arbed. Dylai’r Gweinidog 
egluro pam mae’n credu y bydd y newid hwn yn ddigonol i drawsnewid sut mae’r cynllun 
Arbed yn cael ei weithredu.  

 
Ymateb: Gwrthod   
 
Mater i’r cwmni a’i sefydliadau rhiant yw trefniadau rheoli Arbed am Byth, gan gynnwys y 
penderfyniad i newid pennaeth y contract Arbed. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 87



3 
 

Argymhelliad 6.  
 
Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch ei hamserlen ar gyfer 
rhoi’r argymhellion yn yr adroddiad “Cartrefi Gwell, Cymru Well, Byd Gwell” ar waith. 
Dylai hyn gynnwys cyfeiriad at unrhyw gyllid a ddyrannwyd yn y gyllideb ddrafft at y 
diben hwn.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Rydym yn cyflawni ein hymrwymiad i ddatblygu rhaglen i gefnogi’r camau i ddatgarboneiddio 
cartrefi yn ystod tymor nesaf y Llywodraeth. Mae’r Adroddiad yn nodi’r camau allweddol 
angenrheidiol ac mae Chris Jofeh (Cadeirydd Grŵp Cynghori Llywodraeth Cymru ar 
Ddatgarboneiddio Tai Cyfredol) yn arwain y gwaith gyda Llywodraeth Cymru er mwyn sicrhau 
bod yr elfennau yn eu lle.  
 
Un o’r prif flaenoriaethau - fel yr argymhellir yn yr Adroddiad - yw’r gwaith modelu o’r stoc tai 
cymdeithasol sy’n cael ei wneud ar hyn o bryd. Nod y gwaith yw asesu a yw’r targed EPC A 10 
mlynedd a argymhellir gan y Grŵp yn gyraeddadwy. Hefyd bydd yn helpu i nodi, er enghraifft, y 
llwybrau datgarboneiddio cywir ar gyfer cartrefi, y camau angenrheidiol a’r costau cysylltiedig. 
 
Mae landlordiaid cymdeithasol yn rhan o’r gwaith hwn gyda thri yn benodol yn cydweithio â ni i 
gyflawni’r gwaith modelu manwl. Bydd cam hwn y gwaith yn cael ei gwblhau yn ystod gwanwyn 
2020. Yna bydd landlordiaid cymdeithasol yn gallu defnyddio’r dull hwn i fodelu eu stoc eu 
hunain, y llwybrau sydd angen iddynt eu defnyddio a’r costau cysylltiedig a’r lleihad mewn 
lefelau carbon.   
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 7. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog hysbysu’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch unrhyw drafodaethau gyda 
Llywodraeth y DU am y trefniadau ar ôl Brexit. Dylai hyn gynnwys unrhyw drafodaethau 
ynghylch unrhyw gyllid i liniaru effaith Brexit heb gytundeb.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Mae mwyafrif y trafodaethau a gaiff Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd, Ynni a Materion Gwledig gyda 
Llywodraeth y DU ynghylch cyllid a threfniadau pontio’r UE ar ôl Brexit yn digwydd yn y Grŵp 
Rhyng-Weinidogol ar gyfer yr Amgylchedd, Bwyd a Materion Gwledig gyda Defra a’r 
gweinyddiaethau datganoledig eraill. Ar ôl pob cyfarfod mae’r Gweinidog yn darparu datganiad 
ysgrifenedig gyda diweddariad ar y trafodaethau a gynhaliwyd. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 8. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog, cyn gynted ag y bo modd, gadarnhau a yw’r €6.12 miliwn a 
ymrwymwyd o ganlyniad i adroddiad Bew wedi’i ddyrannu i’w phortffolio.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae’r cyllid hwn yn ymwneud â Thaliadau Uniongyrchol i ffermwyr (colofn 1 o PAC) a gaiff ei 
reoleiddio o dan gyfraith yr UE ac felly mae’n rhaid gwneud newidiadau deddfwriaethol er mwyn 
darparu’r pwerau i’r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol a Gweinidogion Cymru i roi’r cyllid ychwanegol i 

Tudalen y pecyn 88



4 
 

ffermwyr. Mae Adran 5 o Fil Taliadau Uniongyrchol i Ffermwyr (Parhad Deddfwriaethol) yn rhoi 
pŵer i Ysgrifennydd Gwladol y DU gynyddu uchafswm y Taliad Uniongyrchol ar gyfer 2020. 
Gellir defnyddio’r pŵer i gynyddu’r cyllid a chyfran uchafswm y DU a ddyrennir i Gymru ar gyfer 
blwyddyn hawlio 2020, er mwyn rhoi argymhellion yr Arglwydd Bew ar waith. Rydym wrthi’n 
gweithio i gael eglurhad gan lywodraeth y DU ynghylch sut a phryd y bydd Cymru’n derbyn yr 
arian, a byddwn yn falch o gadarnhau pan fydd hyn yn digwydd. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 9. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl ar yr amserlen ddiweddaraf ar gyfer y cynllun cymorth 
ffermio arfaethedig ar ôl Brexit, gan gynnwys cyflwyno Bil amaeth i Gymru.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Yn Ffermio Cynaliadwy a’n Tir, fe wnaethom ni amlinellu ein cynigion ar gyfer trefn newydd o 
gynhaliaeth ariannol sy’n seiliedig ar egwyddor rheoli tir yn gynaliadwy gan ymgorffori 
agweddau economaidd, amgylcheddol a chymdeithasol ar amaethyddiaeth. Comisiynwyd 
cwmni ymchwil annibynnol i gynhyrchu crynodeb cynhwysfawr o ymatebion i’r ymgynghoriad 
hwn. Cyhoeddir hwn yng ngwanwyn 2020. 
 
Hefyd, bwriadwn gyhoeddi Papur Gwyn yn ystod tymor y Cynulliad hwn. Bydd yn nodi cwmpas 
posibl Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru) a fydd yn rhoi sail gyfreithiol angenrheidiol ar gyfer 
gweithredu’r cynllun newydd arfaethedig. Hefyd bydd yn gweithredu fel cyfrwng ar gyfer newid 
deddfwriaethol mewn nifer o feysydd cysylltiedig. Bwriadwn i’r Bil hwn gael ei gyflwyno yn 
gynnar yn ystod tymor nesaf y Cynulliad.  
 
Tan y bydd Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru) mewn grym, rydym yn cymryd pwerau tymor penodol 
trwy Fil Amaethyddiaeth y DU i roi parhad a sefydlogrwydd i ffermwyr Cymru yn ystod y cyfnod 
ansicr hwn. Ar ôl ystyried y sylwadau a godwyd ym Mhwyllgorau’r Senedd wrth iddynt graffu ar 
y Bil Amaethyddiaeth gwreiddiol (a gyflwynwyd ym Medi 2018), dim ond y pwerau sy’n 
angenrheidiol ar gyfer parhau i ddarparu’r cymorth ariannol presennol a sicrhau gwethrediad 
effeithiol marchnadoedd amaethyddol ar draws y DU yn dilyn ein hymadawiad â’r UE y bwriedir 
eu cymryd ar gyfer Gweinidogion Cymru. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 10.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro faint o’r Rhaglen Datblygu Gwledig a ymrwymwyd. Dylai adrodd 
yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor ynghylch faint o’r Rhaglen nad yw wedi’i ymrwymo sy’n cael ei 
ddefnyddio ar gyfer prosiectau peilot ar gyfer cynllun cymorth ffermio ar ôl Brexit 
Llywodraeth Cymru.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Ym mis Rhagfyr 2019, mae £669.3m o’r Rhaglen Datblygu Gwledig wedi’i ymrwymo, sy’n 
cyfateb i 80.2% o’r rhaglen wedi ei ymrwymo. Mae Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd, Ynni a Materion 
Gwledig wedi cymryd camau i sicrhau bod y rhaglen wedi’i hymrwymo’n llawn erbyn 31 Rhagfyr 
2020, pan fydd ein gallu i dynnu arian o Ewrop yn dod i ben. Er mwyn sicrhau ymrwymiad llawn, 
mae’r Rhaglen Datblygu Gwledig wedi ei gorymrwymo, oherwydd bod rhai cynlluniau yn 
anochel yn tynnu’n ôl yn ystod rhaglen saith mlynedd. Nid ydym yn rhagweld y bydd unrhyw 
gyllid Rhaglen Datblygu Gwledig heb ei ymrwymo erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn hon. Rydym yn 

Tudalen y pecyn 89



5 
 

ystyried pa brosiectau i’w cyllido yn 20121 a thu hwnt, trwy gyllid domestig, a byddwn yn sicr yn 
ystyried cynlluniau arloesol a newydd, yn ogystal â chynlluniau sy’n bodoli eisoes sy’n cael eu 
hariannu trwy’r Rhaglen Datblygu Gwledig ar hyn o bryd ac sy’n bodloni ein blaenoriaethau. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 11.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn pan fydd wedi gwneud penderfyniad 
ynghylch sut y bydd yn defnyddio’r £40 miliwn, fwy neu lai, sy’n codi o fodiwleiddio. 
Dylai’r Gweinidog nodi sut mae’n bwriadu defnyddio’r cyllid hwn i fynd i’r afael â llygredd 
amaethyddol.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Er mwyn cefnogi’r economi a’r amgylchedd gwledig yn dilyn Brexit, rydym yn trosglwyddo 15% 
(£41m) o’r uchafswm cyllideb o €320m (£285m) ar gyfer Cynllun Taliadau Sylfaenol 2020 i 
gefnogi datblygiad gwledig yn 2021/22. Mae’r penderfyniad i drosglwyddo’r cyllid hwn wedi ei 
wneud yn amodol ar Lywodraeth y DU yn darparu cyllid amgen llawn, gyda Chymru’n derbyn 
dim un geiniog yn llai nag yr ydym wedi ei dderbyn mewn cyllid Ewropeaidd. Fodd bynnag, ni 
chafwyd cadarnhad o hyn hyd yma. Bydd Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd, Ynni a Materion Gwledig 
yn adrodd i’r Pwyllgor ynghylch sut y defnyddir y cyllid hwn pan ddaw’n amlwg faint o gyllid yn 
union a ddarperir gan Lywodraeth y DU, a bydd hynny o reidrwydd yn effeithio ar ddyrannu 
adnoddau. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 12.  
Dylai’r Gweinidog, ar y cyfle cyntaf, rannu gyda’r Pwyllgor adroddiad y grŵp 
rhanddeiliaid ar y trefniadau llywodraethu amgylcheddol ar gyfer y dyfodol.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Paratowyd drafft cyntaf o’r adroddiad ar gyfer cyfarfod mis Ionawr y grŵp gorchwyl 
rhanddeiliaid. Mae’r Grŵp wrthi’n cwblhau’r adroddiad, a fydd yn cael ei gyflwyno i Weinidog yr 
Amgylchedd, Ynni a Materion Gwledig ddiwedd y mis. Bydd y Pwyllgor yn derbyn copi o’r 
adroddiad maes o law.  
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 13. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro a oes unrhyw gyllid wedi’i ddyrannu ar gyfer bwrw ymlaen ag 
argymhellion y grŵp rhanddeiliaid ar y trefniadau llywodraethu amgylcheddol ar gyfer y 
dyfodol.  

 
Ymateb: Gwrthod  
 
Disgwyliwn i adolygiad cynhwysfawr o wariant nesaf y DU ddigwydd yn 2020 gan bennu 
cyllidebau am y blynyddoedd i ddod. Rydym yn parhau i bwyso ar Lywodraeth y DU i nodi ei 
chynigion i ariannu cyfrifoldebau newydd, fel y corff llywodraethu amgylcheddol arfaethedig. 
Mae’n rhaid i hyn gynnwys darparu cyllid addas i Gymru ble, fel sy’n glir yn yr achos hwn, mae’r 
cyfrifoldebau hyn yn cwmpasu swyddogaethau a meysydd polisi datganoledig.  
  

Tudalen y pecyn 90



6 
 

 
 

Argymhelliad 14. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor hwn am y trafodaethau gyda 
Llywodraeth y DU ynghylch y Rhaglen LIFE  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Ar hyn o bryd, mae cyllid LIFE yn chwarae rôl bwysig wrth ddatblygu dulliau newydd o 
weithredu polisi amgylcheddol yng Nghymru, trwy roi cyfle i sefydliadau arddangos a threialu 
ffyrdd newydd a blaengar o weithredu polisïau ar: 

•   Natur a bioamrywiaeth  

•   Economi gylchol  

•   Gweithredu ar y newid yn yr hinsawdd  

•   Trawsnewid i Ynni Glân  
 
Yn ystod cyfnod pontio gadael yr UE, bydd swyddogion yn parhau i drafod gyda Llywodraeth y 
DU i sicrhau bod Cymru’n dal i elwa ar raglen LIFE. Mae opsiynau ar gael i barhau’n ‘aelod 
cyswllt’ o’r rhaglen ar sail y DU, a hwn fyddai’r dewis cyntaf. Nid yw’n glir eto faint fyddai cost 
aelodaeth o’r fath. Mewn sefyllfa o adael heb gytundeb, byddem yn ceisio dal gafael ar gyllid ar 
gyfer rhaglen gyfwerth yn y DU. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 15.  
 
Rydym yn nodi y dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn unwaith y bydd 
penderfyniadau wedi’u gwneud ynghylch dyrannu’r £15 miliwn ar gyfer y rhwydwaith 
Natura 2000  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Byddwn yn adrodd ar y cynnydd ynghylch dyrannu cyllid Natura 2000 ym mis Mehefin 2020.  
Mae £15m ar gael fel cyllid cyfalaf ar gyfer 2020-21 i gefnogi’r gwaith o adfer safleoedd Natura 
2000. Mae gwybodaeth sylfaenol (2015) gennym ynghylch eu statws presennol, a bydd gwaith 
yn canolbwyntio ar weithredoedd i wella safleoedd tuag at y nod hwn. Mae’r data hwn yn 
darparu rhestr o weithredoedd wedi eu costio y mae modd eu cyflawni i wella pob safle Natura 
2000 yng Nghymru, ar y môr ac ar y tir. Gweinyddir y cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru mewn 
partneriaeth â Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 91



7 
 

Argymhelliad 16.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl ar gynlluniau ei hadran ar gyfer cadwraeth morol yn y 
flwyddyn i ddod. Dylai hyn gynnwys gwybodaeth ynghylch faint o gyllid fydd yn cael ei 
ddyrannu yng nghyllideb yr is-adran i gefnogi’r gwaith hwn ac ar gyfer dynodi parthau 
cadwraeth forol yn 2020-2021.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd dyraniadau ariannol i gefnogi’r gwaith o nodi a dynodi Parthau Cadwraeth Morol a 
bennwyd yn 2019/20 yn cael eu cynnal yn 2020/21; fodd bynnag, bydd hyn yn cael ei reoli’n 
ofalus yn ystod y flwyddyn.  
 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 17. Dylai’r Gweinidog ddarparu rhagor o wybodaeth am broffil staffio 
presennol adran y môr a physgodfeydd ac unrhyw gynlluniau sydd ar y gweill i gynyddu 
nifer y staff.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mater i’r Ysgrifennydd Parhaol yw staffio’r gwasanaeth sifil. Mae Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd, 
Ynni a Materion Gwledig wedi gofyn i’r Ysgrifennydd Parhaol i ysgrifennu at y Pwyllgor ynghylch 
y mater hwn.  
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 18. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl ynghylch yr amserlen ar gyfer cyflwyno’r strategaeth 
rheoli risg newydd. Dylai’r Gweinidog hefyd egluro a oes cyllid wedi’i gynnwys yn y 
gyllideb ddrafft ar gyfer gweithredu’r strategaeth, neu unrhyw gamau sy’n codi ohoni.  

  
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Cyhoeddwyd y crynodeb o ymatebion i’r ymgynghoriad ar y Drafft Strategaeth Genedlaethol ar 
gyfer Rheoli Perygl Llifogydd ac Erydu Arfordirol yng Nghymru newydd ar 7 Chwefror.  
 
Yn ystod yr ymgynghoriad, a gynhaliwyd rhwng 24 Mehefin a 16 Medi 2019, aethpwyd ati i 
geisio barn ar ein dull gweithredu arfaethedig i reoli’r risg o lifogydd ac erydu arfordirol ar draws 
Cymru. Derbyniwyd 61 ymateb ysgrifenedig a chasglwyd safbwyntiau a sylwadau ychwanegol 
mewn tri gweithdy.  
 
Disgwylir i’r Strategaeth Genedlaethol derfynol gael ei chymeradwyo a’i chyhoeddi ym mis 
Mehefin 2020. Ymrwymwyd y gyllideb Risg Llifogydd ac Arfordirol yn ei chyfanrwydd i gyflwyno’r 
Strategaeth newydd ac i gefnogi cynlluniau llifogydd a chynlluniau arfordirol i leihau risg.  
 
Darperir dyraniadau refeniw a chyfalaf trwy weithdrefnau cyllideb safonol. Bydd y polisi 
presennol o ddarparu cyllid cyfalaf i Awdurdodau Rheoli Risg, wedi’u blaenoriaethu ar sail risg, 
yn parhau. Darperir refeniw i gefnogi gweithgareddau Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru a swyddogaethau 
eraill yn cynnwys cynnal a chadw, mapio, hybu ymwybyddiaeth a Chanolfan Monitro Arfordirol 
Cymru.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 92



8 
 

Mae’r Strategaeth newydd yn atgyfnerthu ein polisi o ddarparu gwybodaeth a sicrhau gwell 
canlyniadau o’n buddsoddiad yn y maes perygl llifogydd ac arfordiroedd.  
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 19.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch y cynnydd a wnaed yn ystod y 
flwyddyn ddiwethaf o ran defnyddio ffynonellau buddsoddi amgen ar gyfer ymyriadau i 
reoli’r risg o lifogydd ac erydiad arfordirol.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae’r rhaglenni Perygl Llifogydd ac Arfordiroedd yn parhau i ddarparu cyllid cyfalaf a chyllid 
arloesol i gynlluniau lliniaru llifogydd. Mae eu ffocws yn parhau ar leihau’r risg i fywyd, cartrefi a 
busnesau.  
 
Rydym yn hyrwyddo buddion ehangach ym mhob un o’n cynlluniau, ond os yw trydydd partïon, 
fel seilwaith rheilffordd neu gyfleustodau, yn debygol o elwa ar ostyngiad mewn risg, disgwyliwn 
iddynt gyfrannu at y costau fel sy’n addas. Mae’r Strategaeth Genedlaethol newydd yn nodi 
hynny’n gliriach.  
 

Ers i ni gyhoeddi’r Gyllideb ddrafft, mae nifer o gymunedau yng Nghymru wedi dioddef difrod 
storm dinistriol a digynsail. Ar 18 Chwefror, cyhoeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru gynllun rhyddhad 
llifogydd brys, gyda hyd at £10m ar gael ar unwaith ar gyfer yr ymateb cychwynnol. Mae gwaith 
yn mynd rhagddo i gael darlun clir o raddfa’r difrod ac i nodi’r gefnogaeth tymor hirach sydd ei 
hangen. O ystyried yr agosrwydd at ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol hon (2019-20), mae’n debygol 
y bydd rhai costau’n codi yn y flwyddyn gyfredol a rhai yn 2020-21. O ganlyniad, byddem yn 
disgwyl i unrhyw gymorth ariannol pellach gael ei adlewyrchu yn y gyllideb atodol gyntaf. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 20.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch sut y mae’n bwriadu 
ymgysylltu â’r sector masnachol er mwyn iddo chwarae rhan yn y broses o gyrraedd y 
targedau plannu coed.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n ymgysylltu â’r sector coedwigaeth yn rheolaidd ynghylch y ffordd 
orau o fodloni ein targedau ar gyfer y sector. Byddwn yn darparu diweddariad yn ystod y 
misoedd nesaf ynghylch ein cynlluniau i gynyddu cyfraddau plannu coed yng Nghymru.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 93



9 
 

Argymhelliad 21.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn ynghylch datblygiad y polisi 
coedwigaeth cenedlaethol, gan gynnwys unrhyw asesiad a wnaed o gostau a 
buddiannau’r polisi.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Byddwn yn adrodd am gynnydd gyda’r Goedwig Genedlaethol ym mis Mai 2020. Rydym yn 
bwriadu buddsoddi’r cyllid cyfalaf o £4.5m a chyllid refeniw o £0.5m mewn nifer o brosiectau 
arddangos yn 2020-2021 a fydd yn gwella cyflwr a chysylltedd ein coetiroedd hynafol ac yn 
helpu i hybu’r gyfradd plannu coed yng Nghymru, gan ddatgloi buddion amgylcheddol ac 
economaidd. Bydd y prosiectau arddangos yn ein galluogi i ddechrau gweithgaredd ar lawr 
gwlad, treialu mecanweithiau cyllido a a chyflawni ar gyfer gwella a chreu coetiroedd i lywio ein 
cynlluniau ar gyfer y Goedwig Genedlaethol yn y dyfodol. Bydd y Goedwig Genedlaethol yn 
cyfrannu at y targed o greu 2,000 hectar o goetir eleni, ochr yn ochr â mesurau eraill fel cynllun 
Creu Coetir Glastir. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 22.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor ynghylch unrhyw drafodaethau a gafodd 
gyda’r Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Thai ac awdurdodau lleol ynghylch sut y bydd y 
costau sy’n codi o’r ymyriadau lles anifeiliaid arfaethedig yn cael eu cyllido.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor  
 
Mae swyddogion wedi cyfarfod â chynrychiolwyr yr Awdurdod Lleol i drafod rhwystrau i orfodi a 
materion sy’n ymwneud â thrwyddedu sefydliadau bridio. Ynghyd â’r trafodaethau hynny, mae 
prosiect cwmpasu ar y gweill gan yr Awdurdodau Lleol i benderfynu pa adnoddau ychwanegol 
sy’n angenrheidiol i wneud y defnydd gorau o strwythurau presennol a sicrhau dull cyson o 
drwyddedu sefydliadau bridio ledled Cymru. Ni fydd Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd, Ynni a Materion 
Gwledig mewn sefyllfa i drafod pa gyllid ychwanegol y gallai fod ei angen ar gyfer hyn hyd nes y 
bydd yr astudiaeth gwmpasu wedi ei chwblhau. Bryd hynny, bydd yn cynnal trafodaethau gyda’r 
Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ac Awdurdodau Lleol. 
 

Argymhelliad 23.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog eglur sut y diffinnir “teithio cynaliadwy” mewn perthynas â’r 
dyraniadau cyllid yn y gyllideb ddrafft.  

 
Ymateb:  
 
Mae’r dyraniad Teithio Cynaliadwy yn y gyllideb ddrafft yn cynnwys cyllid i hyrwyddo a chefnogi 

teithio ar fysiau yn bennaf (gan gynnwys Prisiau Consesiynol, Cynllun Teithio â Gostyngiad i 

Bobl Ifanc, gwasanaethau TrawsCymru a Grant Cynnal Gwasanaethau Bysiau). Mae hefyd yn 

cefnogi teithio llesol, gan ganolbwyntio’n benodol ar gerdded a beicio. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 94



10 
 

 

 

 

Argymhelliad 24. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Cynulliad ynghylch effaith yr ymyriadau lleihau 
cyflymder cyn gynted â phosibl ar ôl i’r data gael eu cyhoeddi ym mis Mawrth 2020. Dylai 
hyn gynnwys amcangyfrif ar sail gwybodaeth o ba bryd y mae’n disgwyl y bydd pob 
safle’n llwyddo i gydymffurfio â’r targedau ansawdd aer.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Mae’r adroddiad data i’w gyhoeddi ym mis Mawrth 2020 yn cynnwys naratif ar effaith y mesur 
terfyn cyflymder 50 milltir yr awr ym mhob un o’r pum lleoliad ar y rhwydwaith traffyrdd a 
chefnffyrdd. Bydd yr adroddiad hefyd yn darparu diweddariad ynghylch pryd mae disgwyl i bob 
un o’r lleoliadau sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth â’r terfyn cyfreithiol.  
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 25. 
Dylai’r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor hwn o fewn y 6 mis nesaf ynghylch 
datblygiad y Mesurau Cadw Rhagofalus. Yn benodol, hoffai’r Pwyllgor gael manylion 
pellach ynghylch y cynlluniau ymgynghori; yr amserlen ar gyfer y rhaglen o waith; a’r 
cyllid a ddyrennir i’r polisi.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Bydd yr adroddiad y mae swyddogion yn bwriadu ei gyhoeddi ym mis Mawrth 2020 hefyd yn 
cynnwys diweddariad ar ddatblygiad y Mesurau Cadw Rhagofalus. Bydd swyddogion yn sicrhau 
bod y diweddariad yn cynnwys y mathau a’r lefelau o ymgynghori sydd mewn golwg a’r 
amserlenni ar gyfer dylunio a gweithredu pob Mesur Cadw Rhagofalus ymhellach. Bydd 
swyddogion yn rhoi gwybod i’r Pwyllgor cyn gynted ag y bydd yr adroddiad yn cael ei gyhoeddi 
a byddant hefyd yn amlinellu lefel a ffynhonnell y cyllid ar gyfer y Mesurau Cadw Rhagofalus. 
 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 26. Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro a oes cyllid yn y gyllideb ddrafft i gefnogi 
gweithrediad y Cynllun Aer Glân a datblygiad y Ddeddf Aer Glân.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Rydym wedi dyfarnu cyllid o ychydig dros £25 miliwn hyd at 2021 i gefnogi gweithredu mesurau 
i gyflymu cydymffurfiaeth â therfynau nitrogen deuocsid a gwella ansawdd aer yng Nghymru. Er 
mwyn sicrhau gwelliannau angenrheidiol mewn ansawdd aer, mae’n ofynnol i’r gymdeithas 
gyfan chwarae rhan. Mae hyn yn cynnwys newidiadau mewn ymddygiadau gartref, wrth deithio, 
yn y gwaith ac wrth hamddena. Mae’r effeithiau a’r buddion yn berthnasol i bob sector. Mewn 
sawl achos, bydd arian ac adnoddau i gefnogi a chanolbwyntio ar welliannau i ansawdd aer yn 
gostus ac mae rhai mesurau a gynigiwyd (e.e. terfynau cyflymder, cyfyngiadau traffig) eisoes 
wedi bod yn amhoblogaidd, er gwaetha’r buddion. Bydd angen buddsoddiad tymor hir parhaol a 
sylweddol er mwyn gwella ansawdd aer. Nid ydym mewn sefyllfa i bennu faint yn union o gyllid 
ychwanegol sy’n ofynnol nes bod astudiaethau o gamau gweithredu penodol yn cael eu cynnal 
a’u canlyniadau’n hysbys. 

Tudalen y pecyn 95



11 
 

 
Mae’r gyllideb benodol ar gyfer ansawdd aer yn 2020-21 yn gymesur â chyllideb refeniw o 
£3,415,000 a chyllideb gyfalaf o £17,095,000. O’r cyfanswm, ein hymrwymiadau mwyaf yw’r 
grantiau o dros £16,000,000 i Gaerffili a Chaerdydd i leihau nitrogen deuocsid yn yr ardaloedd 
ble mae ei lefelau dros y terfynau cyfreithiol. Defnyddir gweddill y gyllideb i gefnogi datblygu a 
chyflenwi Cynllun a Deddf Aer Glân i Gymru, yn cynnwys tystiolaeth ac ymgysylltu i gefnogi 
argymhellion yn y dyfodol, targedau ansawdd aer newydd, monitro ac asesu ansawdd aer a 
chyfathrebu i gefnogi newid ymddygiad, ac annog gweithredu i leihau llygredd aer. 
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 27. Dylai’r Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Cynulliad yn 
rheolaidd ynghylch y cynnydd a wnaed o ran gweithredu’r argymhellion yn adroddiad 
cynnydd Comisiwn Trafnidiaeth De-ddwyrain Cymru a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Rhagfyr 
2019.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Derbyniodd Llywodraeth Cymru adroddiad Diweddariad Cynnydd y Comisiwn yn ffurfiol ar 17 
Rhagfyr. Croesawyd yr adroddiad gan Weinidog yr Economi, Trafnidiaeth a Gogledd Cymru 
mewn Datganiad Ysgrifenedig ar yr un diwrnod.  

 
Maent wedi rhoi tri chynnig cynnar i ni o fesurau llwybr cyflym sy’n canolbwyntio ar draffyrdd 
sydd wedi’u cynllunio i gael effaith ar lif traffig ar unwaith.  
 
Bydd y Comisiwn yn cyhoeddi adroddiad pellach yn y gwanwyn eleni, gyda’r adroddiad terfynol 
i’w ddisgwyl tua diwedd 2020. 

Tudalen y pecyn 96



 
 

Energy UK  

First Floor 

26 Finsbury Square 

London EC2A 1DS 

T 020 7930 9390 

www.energy-uk.org.uk 

t @EnergyUKcomms 
 
 

Energy UK is the trading name of the Association of Electricity Producers Limited, a company limited by guarantee,  
registered in England & Wales, Company Registration No 2779199, registered office as above.  1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
Mike Hedges AM 
Chair, Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 
 
27 February 2020 
 
Sent via email to: Mahima.Khan@assembly.wales  
 
 
 
Re: Follow-up to 30th January Committee Session  
 
Dear Mr Hedges, 
 
Thank you again for the opportunity to give evidence to inform the Committee’s inquiry into fuel poverty 
in Wales on 30th January.  
 
At the session I offered to provide the Committee with a note outlining some of the relationships and 
partnerships Energy UK members have with stakeholders in Wales.   
 
As set out in our initial evidence to the Committee, addressing fuel poverty across Wales will require 
collaboration between a wide range of stakeholders. Energy UK is, therefore, supportive of a partnership 
approach to addressing fuel poverty and assisting customers in vulnerable circumstances. Addressing 
fuel poverty will require input from government, the health sector, local authorities, energy suppliers and 
other parties. The new Welsh fuel poverty strategy should encourage stakeholders to work together to 
identify households in or at risk of fuel poverty and develop solutions to provide support.  
 
To this end, please find below a number of anonymised examples of the various relationships and 
partnerships our members have with stakeholders in Wales. Please note that this is not an exhaustive 
list. 
 
 
Examples of Relationships and Partnerships 
 
Commission for Customers in Vulnerable Circumstances 
In 2018 Energy UK launched the Commission for Customers in Vulnerable Circumstances, to explore 
how customers in vulnerable circumstances could be provided better energy services in the future. 
 
Independently chaired by Lord Whitty, with five expert Commissioners from a wide range of 
backgrounds, the Commission published its final report last year. The Commission arrived at seven key 
themes, leading to a number of recommendations - for suppliers, energy networks, price comparison 
websites, Energy UK, Ofgem, the UK Government, and Citizens Advice – all of which the Commission 
believes will lead to better services for customers in vulnerable circumstances. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 97

Eitem 4.5

mailto:Mahima.Khan@assembly.wales


 

Energy UK is the trading name of the Association of Electricity Producers Limited, a company limited by guarantee,  
registered in England & Wales, Company Registration No 2779199, registered office as above.  2 of 3 

The report was the culmination of over a year of evidence gathering and engagement with various 
stakeholders through oral evidence sessions and written submissions from across Great Britain. This 
included a dedicated oral evidence session in Cardiff, where the Commission was able to hear from 
expert witnesses and key organisations on the experiences of energy customers in Wales. This included 
the Fuel Poverty Coalition Wales, the Mental Health and Money Advice Service Wales and the 
Speakeasy Advice Centre. 
 
The final report can be read here: https://www.energy-uk.org.uk/our-work/commission-for-customers-in-
vulnerable-circumstances.html  
 
National Energy Action (NEA) Cymru 
One large supplier has developed a strong relationship with NEA Cymru, having worked with them 
closely for a number of years and funded several projects. The member in question currently supports 
two NEA Cymru projects through its Warm Home Discount (WHD) Industry Initiative funding: 
 

• Partnering with NEA funding their ‘Empowering Communities’ initiative for Wales, providing 
energy efficiency training and advice sessions.  This has been agreed as multiyear funding 
meaning this project will continue through 2020-21. 

 

• Providing support to Citizens Advice in England and Wales in a further project providing one to 
one sessions and income maximisation for those in or at risk of fuel poverty. This will likewise 
continue through 2020-21. 

 
Local Authorities  
Another member currently has three WHD Industry Initiative funded projects that work with Local 
Authorities across Wales to support customers in need of a range of energy related assistance. The 
projects are: 
 

• the Emergency Central Heating Offer (ECHO) – ECHO helps to repair or replace broken or 
condemned boilers;  

 

• the Local Energy Advice Partnership (LEAP) - LEAP provides households with energy efficiency 
advice, some energy efficiency measures and debt advice; and  

 

• the Home Emergency Appliance Replacement (HEART) – HEART provides energy efficiency 
advice and support with funding the purchase of white goods.  

 
Local Authority Flexibility (LA Flex)  
Under the Energy Companies Obligation (ECO), since 2017, Local Authorities have had the power to 
widen the eligibility criteria for ECO, allowing them to tailor eligibility of the scheme to their respective 
area. The power is known as LA Flex. 
 
One Energy UK member has highlighted to us that around a quarter of the ECO energy efficiency 
measures they have delivered in Wales since late 2018 has been through LA Flex. This has involved 

Tudalen y pecyn 98

https://www.energy-uk.org.uk/our-work/commission-for-customers-in-vulnerable-circumstances.html
https://www.energy-uk.org.uk/our-work/commission-for-customers-in-vulnerable-circumstances.html


 

Energy UK is the trading name of the Association of Electricity Producers Limited, a company limited by guarantee,  
registered in England & Wales, Company Registration No 2779199, registered office as above.  3 of 3 

them working with the local authorities in the areas of Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion, Conwy, 
Denbighshire, Flintshire, Pembrokeshire and Powys.    
 
Agency Line 
One member has established an ‘Agency Line’ for support agencies working in the community with 
customers in Wales. The line provides a direct route for local agencies into the supplier’s customer 
relations department so that customer issues can be escalated and dealt with. Organisations making 
use of the line include: Linc Cymru Housing Association, Gwalia, South East Wales Energy Advice 
Centre, Carmarthenshire Country Council, Cardiff City Council, Age Concern Cardiff, Action in Caerau 
and Ely, Warm Wales, Independent Living, North Wales Energy Advice Centre and a number of local 
Citizen Advice Bureaux across Wales.  
 
Stay Warm This Winter 
In January 2020, for the fifth year, the Stay Warm This Winter drop in event for AMs at the Senedd 
Cymru was hosted by an Energy UK member. Supported by two of the supplier’s service and repair 
engineers, the event was attended by a quarter of Assembly Members, including the Minister for 
Housing and Local Government. Local politicians will often be the first to be contacted by constituents 
who are struggling with bills or living in fuel poverty, and, therefore, materials have been developed to 
help Assembly Members including advice on how people could make their households more energy 
efficient; smart meters; contacts for teams supporting vulnerable customers as well as signposting 
additional financial support. 
 
Energy Trusts  
One member highlighted that via its energy trust it is currently providing funding to Riverside Advice 
(Cardiff) and Citizens Advice Cymru. The supplier’s vulnerability team also works closely with Cynnal 
Cymru, Age Cymru and NEA on various initiatives. 
 
 
I trust you find the information above of use. If you would like to discuss further or have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me in the first instance at daniel.alchin@energy-uk.org.uk or on 020 
7930 9390.  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Dan Alchin 
Deputy Director, Retail Policy  

Tudalen y pecyn 99

mailto:daniel.alchin@energy-uk.org.uk

	Agenda
	2 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol mewn perthynas â Bil Amaethyddiaeth y DU - sesiwn dystiolaeth 2
	Papur - Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur - Cymdeithas Tir a Busnesau Cefn Gwlad (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur - Undeb Cenedlaethol Amaethwyr Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol mewn perthynas â Bil Amaethyddiaeth y DU - sesiwn dystiolaeth 3
	4.1 Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan Hybu Cig Cymru ar y MCD mewn perthyna â Bil Amaethyddiaeth y DU
	4.2 Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan RSPB Cymru ar y MCD mewn perthyna â Bil Amaethyddiaeth y DU
	4.3 Tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan yr Ymddiriedolaeth Cenedlaethol ar y MCD mewn perthynas â Bil Amaethyddiaeth y DU
	4.4 Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adrodiad y Pwyllgor ar Gyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2020-2021
	4.5 Tlodi Tanwydd - Gwybodaeth am berthnasoedd a phartneriaethau gan Energy UK

